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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit for 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB276.1 million (2021: RMB344.0 million)
and RMB98.6 million (2021: RMB133.9 million), respectively. The
revenue for the year mainly includes the revenue recognized from
sales of villas of Xintian Banshan and delivery of pre-sold units of
the Yangzhou project. Change in revenue composition resulted
in a decrease in gross profit margin. Loss before taxation was
RMB1.4 million (2021: profit before taxation of RMB197.2 million)
before taking into account the fair value changes of investment
properties and reversal of impairment loss of properties under
development. During the year, recurring outbreak of pandemic
and preventive measures brought about by Zero-COVID Policy
adversely affected the construction progress, rental and selling
activities of the Group’s projects. Unfavourable fair value changes
of RMB49.4 million (2021: RMB12.0 million) were recorded for
the investment properties. Whereas, a net reversal of impairment
loss of properties under development of RMB45.5 million
(2021: RMB12.0 million) was recorded as a result of reversal of
impairment loss for Xuzhou project exceeded the provision for
Yangzhou project.

After taking into the above factors, reduction of contribution from
the associate and certain one-off gains recorded in last year, the
Group recorded a net loss of RMB39.1 million in 2022 (2021:
profit of RMB164.0 million).
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2022, the post-pandemic economic rebound slowed down
across the globe due to factors such as escalating geopolitical
conflicts, high inflation, and accelerating interest rate hikes.
In addition to external risks, the Chinese economy faced
interruptions in commercial and activities of daily living due
to sporadic COVID-19 outbreaks, suppressed productivity
and consumer sentiment. In the context where home buyers
exercised caution amid an economic slowdown, a number of
incidents, including project suspension, mortgage defaults,
and credit risks for real estate developers, occurred frequently,
leading to a decline in property transaction volume and prices.
The real estate industry in PRC heralded a period of deep
adjustment. However, the government, in response to the
market downturn and the requirement to stabilize the economy,
implemented a series of measures to support the real estate
industry on the basis of adhering to the principle of “housing is
for living, not for speculation”. Looking into 2023, the industry is
expected to gradually enter a period of recovery in the midst of
increasingly relaxed regulatory policies.

Xintian Banshan

The Group’s flagship project Xintian Banshan is located next
to the South Lake 4A-grade tourist attraction in Baiyun
District, Guangzhou City, which is built on hills commanding a
magnificent view of cloud mountain and blue lake. The majority
of the project’s high-rise residences at Zone D and Villas at Zone
C has been sold. The villas (known as #7 ke |1 2) at Zone B,
which are built along the mountain slope, are currently available
for sale and highly acclaimed by the market. Boasting the most
superior mountaintop location, the rare villas (known as #TXKe Ll
JB #8) at Zone E in the Greater Bay Area adopts Monte-Carlo’s
aristocratic lifestyle, and is currently available for reservation and
visitation, attracting many top-notch individuals from the society
for appreciation and sales negotiation. During the pandemic, the
Group adopted a cherish strategy by making minor adjustments
to selling prices. During the year, total subscription area and
amount for Xintian Banshan amounted to approximately 2,000
sgm (2021: 5,200 sgm) and approximately RMB140 million (2021:
RMB374 million). Due to the pandemic, low-density communities
have manifested their advantages. Looking ahead to 2023, we
have seen a recovery in the social and economic activities and
business environment as the pandemic subsides. This recovery
will help the Group continue to promote and sell rare top luxury
villas in the Greater Bay Area, bringing in lucrative income for the
Group in the future.
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ITEHES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

Logistics Commercial Property Projects

The Group ventured into logistics properties in the Yangtze River
Delta region in 2017. Yangzhou Intelligent Living City, with a site
area of 81,000 sgm located in Guangling District, Yangzhou City,
is developed in two phases, namely Zone A and Zone B. The
areas of commercial and office units of Zone A are approximately
10,000 sgm and 80,000 sgm respectively. Despite the pandemic
affecting the construction progress, 7 out of the 12 blocks of
properties in Zone A were completed and continued to be sold
and delivered. Due to the oversupply of similar products in the
market and the impact of the pandemic on the economy, sales
remained sluggish in 2022, with the subscription amount and
area only amounting to approximately RMB14.8 million and 1,900
sgm respectively (2021: RMB24.2 million and 3,100 sgm).

Xuzhou Linan Intelligent Industrial Park, with a site area of
102,000 sgm in Yunlong District, Xuzhou City, the saleable
area of commercial units and office units are of approximately
62,000 sgm and 41,000 sgm, respectively. The Group took
advantage of the government’s local development opportunities
in previous years, achieving satisfactory presales results. Due
to the city lockdown measures for pandemic control, local
economic activities were suspended, which resulted in a delay
in project construction and delivery. As at the end of 2022,
subscription for commercial units and office units decreased
significantly, with only approximately RMB13.0 million and 1,400
sgm (2021: RMB230.8 million and approximately 21,400 sgm)
of subscription amount and area recorded, respectively. In early
January of 2023, the Group finished the completion-based check
and acceptance procedures, with the delivery procedures of sold
units initiated.

Looking ahead to 2023, we aim to reduce the inventory level of

both projects by taking advantage of the economic rebound after
the pandemic, and accelerate the delivery of sold units.
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Talent Shoes Trading Center

Business environment for Talent Shoes Trading Center, a
10-storey commercial and office complex located in Liwan
District, Guangzhou, has been adversely affected by the
draconian lockdown measures repeatedly implemented by the
government, which have mostly affected the Zhuhai District and
Liwan District, in addition to industrial shift and international
trade tension. Our tenants and staff in general experienced great
challenges in their business operation and management. Package
of solutions, including short-term rental and management fee
concessions, was introduced to tide over the difficult time.
Following Chinese Lunar New Year in 2023, the market sentiment
started to improve with tenants returning. It is expected that the
investment and rental of this property will return to normal in the
future.

Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

The Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project is the Group’s joint
development project with Sun Hung Kai Properties Group,
which is located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou,
near Guangzhou East Railway station. During previous years, all
residential units of the project were sold out and delivered, with
a few hundred parking spaces to be sold. The project company
has accumulated a large amount of bank deposits, and dividends
were paid to the shareholders within the year. The Group will
continue to negotiate to expedite cash return from the joint
venture company.

APPRECIATION

In 20283, the Group will continue to persist in the strategy of
product quality, keep track of sales collection, promote inventory
turnover and ensure smooth delivery, in order to reciprocate the
trust and support of all shareholders, customers, financing and
business partners with our work results. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the dedication and contribution of all
employees.

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, the PRC

31 March 2023
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited is
investment holding. The Group engage in the businesses of (i)
property development, (ii) property investment and (iii) property
management in the PRC since the Group completed the
acquisition of equity interests in various real estate projects in the
PRC in 2011 (the “Previous Acquisition”).

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
a revenue and gross profit of RMB276.1 million and RMB98.6
million, respectively, as compared to a revenue and gross profit
of RMB344.0 million and RMB133.9 million, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year, a revenue of RMB213.2 million (2021: RMB261.2
million) was recorded from the delivery and sales of residential
units and villas of Xintian Banshan with a gross floor area (“GFA”)
of approximately 3,000 square meters (“sgm”) (2021: 3,800
sgm). A revenue of RMB38.8 million (2021: RMB31.7 million)
with a GFA of approximately 5,200 sgm (2021: 3,900 sgm) was
recognized from the delivery of office units of our Yangzhou
Intelligence Living City. Revenue from sales of other properties
reduced to RMB1.6 million (2021: RMB23.7 million). Rental
income and properties management fee income of RMB10.5
million (2021: RMB14.7 million) and RMB3.3 million (2021:
RMB4.1 million), respectively, were recorded from our Talent
Shoes Trading Center. Whereas rental income and properties
management fee generated from other properties of the Group
was RMB8.7 million in total (2021: RMB8.6 million).

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost, the net provision for impairment
loss as well as changes in revenue mix, gross profit and overall
gross profit margin reduced to RMB98.6 million and 35.7%
(2021: RMB133.9 million and gross profit margin of 38.9%),
respectively.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

DISTRIBUTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE
AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group stayed cautious on cost control. We reduced
distribution costs to RMB9.6 million (2021: RMB15.8 million) in
response to weakened market. Construction progress of our
projects in Xuzhou and Yangzhou were affected and delayed
by various quarantine restrictions against COVID-19. Further
compensation of late delivery of presold properties units
amounted RMB15.6 million (2021: RMB15.0 million) had been
paid and provided in accordance with the terms of relevant
presales documents. Delivery of presales properties in Xuzhou
commenced in January 20283. Other than such compensation,
administrative and other expense of RMB44.6 million (2021:
RMB44.3 million) was recorded.

SHARE OF RESULT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned by
the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. All the remaining
residential units were substantially sold and delivered in previous
years. During the year, revenue was mainly arrived from sales of
car parking spaces as well as interest income generated from
spare cash of the associate. After taking into account the costs
from Previous Acquisition, which is re-calculated to reflect the
remaining underlying assets available for sale, as well as the tax
provision of the associate, the Group recorded a share of loss of
RMB4.4 million (2021: share of profit of RMB129.7 million).

FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

During the year, especially the second half of the year, stringent
pandemic control caused prolonged locked down of various
district in Guangzhou, which hampered all economic activities
around that area. Consideration has made been to the overall
weakened rental market in Guangzhou and lowered market
yield in overall general commercial properties market, a fair
value deficits of RMB49.4 million (2021: RMB12.0 million) were
recorded, mainly from our Talent Shoes Trading Center, by
reference to revaluation by the Company’s independent property
valuer.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

QOur commercial projects in Yangzhou and Xuzhou were
launched for presale in late 2019. Despite tight measures against
properties market slightly loosened, recurrent outbreak of
pandemic and flattering of economic growth especially in second
and third tier cities, the sales of our commercial logistic projects
in Yangzhou and Xuzhou were nearly halted.

After consideration of our current pre-sales record, development
progress, future marketing strategies, completion and
commencement of delivery of Xuzhou project in early 2023,
impairment losses provided in previous years as well as
references to valuation by the independent property valuer,
a net reversal of impairment loss of RMB45.5 million (2021:
RMB12.0 million) had been made to the logistic projects under
development.

FINANCE COST

Upon continual repayment of various loans, the Group maintained
a lower average loan balances. As such, finance costs from
secured bank loans and other loans reduced to RMB45.5 million
(2021: RMB65.0 million).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense increased to RMB37.8 million (2021:
RMB33.2 million). It was primarily because there was a one-off
reversal of over-provided taxation in last year.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Given the reduction of revenue, reduction of share of result of
associate, absence of one-off gain on disposal and losing control
of subsidiaries, unfavourable fair value changes on properties
projects and off-setting effect by reversal of impairment loss of
properties under development, a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB39.1 million was recorded instead of a profit
of RMB164.0 million in 2021.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

PROSPECT

Although global economic stability is affected by Sino-US
relations, Russia-Ukraine war and US rate hike, the China’s
economy is set to rebound in 2023 as mobility and activity pick
up after the lifting of pandemic control measures. The Group will
focus on the promotion of the sales of Xintian Banshan, monitor
and maintain the liquidity of the Group, tightly control operating

BNV O
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BEEHREEREXZITXRMAE  RERFRE
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costs, and act prudently and reposition the Group for future fi °

growth and development.

PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties and projects on

hand are shown in the table below:

MELE
RIE-_—F+-A=+—H XEBENEREEY
¥NBEHHEHIATE

Investment properties REMHE
Lease term Gross floor Percentage
Project and address Purpose of land area interest
HE Ritbht iR T it EHIBR HEEER EZED
(sq.m.)
(FI5K)
A 10-storey commercial building built overa ~ Commercial Medium 22,526* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and B %  HA
office building with car parking spaces.
No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC ("Talent Shoes Trading Center”)
A E SR A M T % 2 R I PR R 185%
—IEER=EE FAERERRRGAER
EHBEMZI0ERREET
(IRREERSFL])
Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, BES Gkt

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (“Shangyu Garden™)

o B8 B SR A N T RO [ K] B 45557
FEER( FEER ] 2 EREMA

spaces.

Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking

* MR EER (T BEFEERL) -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2022

11



12

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

Properties under development BRPYE
Planned Expected
Saleable Percentage Stage of completion
Project and address Site area GFA interest completion date
TEITEHE
HA Rithat WREE AEEEE 2 HEZAIHE TERER BRI B
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)

(FH2K) (FIHK)

Yangzhou Intelligence Living City 46,000 Approximate 100%  Under 2H 2023

A project to the south of Kaifa (Zone A) #757,000** development —Z =1
East Road and east of Jiangdu (Al@) A8 T
South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu and

Province, the PRC 54

BINEZ AR 35,000

AR BT8R & 15 N T R B SR (Zone B)

VAR B T &P B& AR AV IE B (Bl@)

*k

It includes saleable area contracted for sales but not yet deliver in
zone A. Construction area of commercial and office units of 24,000
sg.m. and basement of 34,000 sg.m. in zone A are planned to
retain as owner’s occupation/investment. The project has to retain
40% of area as owner’s occupation/investment.

Completed properties held for sale

e PREABBTHHEERRIN 2 HERE - A
& F) 7 3 e it A BEAT FE SR E 15 24,000 A K K
b EE34,000F KAt BMRBIEHEA AMGA &
BER® - 2 EBARBLIO%NNEEEEREAS
AR -

FEHEZERTIYE

Gross floor Percentage

Project and address area interest

HE Kbt BELEHE HEREILH
(sq.m.)
(‘FHK)

Residential units in zone B, D and E of Approximate 100%
Xintian Banshan #728,000*

South Lake Village Phase I,

Tonghe Road, Baiyun District,

Guangzhou City, Guangdong

Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)

(R

FOAILHE 2 — B

hEERE BMNTHE R E R
FRAFIW([FR*¥1L]1)B - DREESETEL

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
75 I B 75 0 A

Gross floor Percentage

Project and address area interest
HE Rk HMEEERE EZEob
(sq.m.)
(‘FHK)
Xuzhou Intelligence Industry Town Approximate 100%

A project to the south of Guozhuang
Road and North of Longhai Railway,
Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

RN EBEE/NE

REDT#E RN

20 B A R R e g B4

PSid:opEl=

Residential units of

South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road,

Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
VRIS

PEERE EMNT

HE & R

FEORIL §T % — A7

ZEEBEMN

Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
MMM ERIER

B E R A BN TR &

#7104,000%*

Approximate 100%
#3700

Approximate 30%
#1300

Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden, Shangyu Garden and Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project 5 A
IR RF L~ RIGH - RfafEE - PEIEERMMNERIER ZFEU

*

It includes area contracted for sales but not yet deliver. * BREEFTAHEERAIMNNERE -

# It excludes floor area of approximately 29,000 sq.m. for owner’s  *# TEEEEAMEA/IE #29,000F 75 KK

occupation/investment.

WA -
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2022 were
approximately RMB4,030.6 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB4,220.7 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,670.1
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB1,708.6 million)
and approximately RMB2,360.5 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB2,512.1 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2022, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio then
computed as total liabilities over total assets was approximately
58.6% (31 December 2021: 59.5%). As at 31 December 2022,
bank borrowings amounted to RMB141.3 million (31 December
2021: RMB277.2 million) carry variable interest rate of the
People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate or plus
0.55% inflated rate (31 December 2021: 110.6% multiply by the
People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate or plus
0.55% inflated rate). Other borrowings amounted to RMB297.2
million (831 December 2021: RMB285.5 million) carry fixed rate
with a range from 10.5% to 11.8% (31 December 2021: 10.5%
to 11.8%) per annum.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of goods sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.15995:RMB1
and HK$1.12603:RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

RBEERMKEER
RZZE-_—F+-—A=+—H AEBEEL
BHABARKA4,0306EEL(ZE_—F+=A
=+—H: HAREE42207THE L) - AERE
ERABEBREINHARE1,67018E8L(ZE
——F+Z-ZA=+—H: HAR1,7086E 8
T M ARK23605BETL(ZEZ—F+=
A=Z+—H: HARE25121HETL)BE -

EERRAKEBEBRNEEES  BAERN
XBmE  BABRRMBER  AJERKKRE
REHBE - RUMBEES -

REEBZBFHEIUARKEE - RITEKRERS
FEUARBHAE R-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—
A AEBEWENEEmBRERINER R 2 KT
BRENESH -

BXREE

RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H AKEZEHEL
KIZB B ERABEENE BHS58.6%(ZT=—
FH+—-A=+—H:595%) MN_ZT-_F+—
A=4+—HB RITERBARKE 141388 T(=
T-_—F+-_A=1+—8: AR¥27725ET)
BRPBEARBITAFEREARF R Z ZHH X
R N0.55% 2 FBME(ZFE=—F+=A
=+—B : BRPEARBRITAFERELRFEF
A110.6% 2 ) B F & 51 B 5k 110.55% 2 /% B) FI| &
TR HMERAARK272BEEL(ZT - —
F+ZA=+—H: ARK2855B8T)ENT
BFE105%FE118%(—BE-—F+-F=+—
B :10.5%%11.8%) 2 EEF =B »

S BE = B
AEENREEFEESRERBAAEEUAR
BEETE - FEUL - ANEEN R E A EmEKRIN
EREE BE—_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HItF
B ARBREE W B®mE D IKA T HEER
Wi B % 1.15995 7 7T H A R 17T % 1.12603/%8
TTHAREATT c NEBWEE M EIFRHE



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, an investment property amounted
approximately RMB506.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB552.0
million) were pledged to secure general banking facilities. As at
31 December 2021, completed properties held for sale amounted
of RMB205.5 million also pledged for the general banking
facilities.

To secure other borrowings, completed properties held for sale
amounted to RMB428.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB153.7
million) were pledged as at 31 December 2022 whereas
properties under development and deposit with the approximate
value of RMB184.7 million and RMB3.4 million respectively were
also pledged to secure other borrowings as at 31 December
2021.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 199 (31
December 2021: 208) employees, with about 197 in the Mainland
China and 2 in Hong Kong. All employees are remunerated based
on industry practice and in accordance with prevailing labor law.
In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff benefits including
medical insurance, performance related bonus, and mandatory
provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a new share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize
the environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

BNV O

EEKH

REZFEZ=—F+-A=+—8 BEMEHAR
¥506.0B8BL(ZE—F+=A=+—H: A
R#¥552.08 87L) EEE P LAERE —ARRITR
& -R-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H HEHEZ
BRTHEARKE205.58 & 082 fEE I A EL
B—MRIBITREE o

ARBHEMER  RZEZ_F+A=+—
A BELEZERIMEARMEI286EET
TE-—F+ZA=+—H: AR¥153.78 8
TIEEM MR- —F+=-_A=+—H -
BEARNOAAREIBATAETRARK3.4H
BT BRPYE TR EERIR ARG EM

B3k -
EEABKF B

RZE_ZF+ZA=+—"08 XxEEERY
198 BT (ZE-—F+=-H=+—H :208
H) HPH1o7 ABERRAE2ABREE - &
BET ZEHMIRERNEB RRIEIRITE TAF
BT -RES BELAFIN AEEMREHE
TEF  ERREEERR  BRRIREZIEA
RoghlENTES o
—E—ZFAA - T HETHRERSH AR
FERETS - RAFER  TEREFER
T o

BREBRKER

AEBUBRERAZETOEEASHRTREA
FEZERRA - ERRBCENEE  AEEE
BEFEERHEMERE - BKE - WERGTFEKE
OB N ERGEIRBERNZERERIE © It
S AEBZEEBFMAREBRRERER
THER2MAERRT A B AR - REEEXF
REYERIAR - ARERIEBRERETBREN
BRERRLZEERER LB REEABEHILA
AMIEEFRERTARZE(MFEER) o tboh - &
SEENNEEEEREHEWH AR @R EM
BV BERERBRTE ARE—THE  F2
BRI - HEREAWSE -
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations
and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 2013. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in note 35 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin - aged 43, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich,
the United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan - aged 38, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
group companies, responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.

EENESREBAEZERE

HITES

REEEE - 43m 0 RARAEZEFZGIFELA
SEGH RILLEBEAEBE 2 BERBEEE -
BEEE  ANBARREBKEE - REANERE
AR EDA A E (University of Greenwich)BR8 T &
ERBLEN - FRYEBRRTEREBD TFK
BoREEN-ZZ—"F+_AMAEZEEZS -

BETRE 385 RARRRNTESTRTEE
B AR HEERE - ABEBER LY B
FEEIF BEELEEENTIAVKERBI NG
TRP(ERTR)EXNRERE LM - Bk
ERZZEZLFNMABITRIT(FE)BRAARE
MTT » RRECEFBERILERITE - &
FRBEERP/NEEXZBIBFIEE - EMA
RARR - WELRE T FREEBITRT
(FE)BERADEMNEBDZITTR - BEER
REBRENKRS - BAEER-_FT—AFMAM
AREE o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENESREEBEAEZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 63, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and New Zealand and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an independent
non-executive director of C Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code:
1486), Tibet Water Resources Limited (stock code: 1115) and
China New Town Development Company Limited (stock code:
1278). Mr. Lo is also a non executive director of SY Holdings
Group Limited (formerly known as Sheng Ye Capital Limited)
(stock code: 6069). Mr. Lo was an independent non-executive
director of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (stock code: 1066) during August 2009 to June 2022. All
the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in February 2011.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 64, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of Chiu,
Szeto & Cheng, Solicitors, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr.
Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years.
Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian
International Constructions Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341) and Aceso Life Science Group Limited (stock code:
474). All the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Mak joined
the Group in December 2015.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael — aged 49, graduated from University
of Toronto with Bachelor of Commerce and received his Master
of Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fok has over 20 years of extensive experience
in auditing, corporate finance and investment banking focusing
on IPO sponsorship, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
corporate restructuring. At present, Mr. Fok is the co-founder
and managing director of Maxa Capital Limited. Mr. Fok served
as the managing director and deputy head of investment banking
department in Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and
was the director of Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited.
Mr. Fok joined the Group in August 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 49, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known as
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086),
the financial controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021)
and deputy financial officer and company secretary of MOBI
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods
from May 2004 to June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006,
January 2006 to August 2007 and August 2007 to May 2011,
respectively, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee joined the Group in May 2011.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the
same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2022,

was as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE
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TEC A+ A=+ —HIMBFE - @
FIESERART

SR IHFEEMT

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2022

HERE R-B-_FET2E8R

Annual
General
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee BRER
gz ERERS FMESE REEES BFEAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 4/4 N/A 11 11 11
ReBLRE(EEELE) N
Mr. Luo Zhangguan™* 4/4 N/A 11 11 1/1
BEWLE TEA
Independent Non-executive Directors
VHBTES
Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 4/4 3/3 11 11 1/1
EEmEEE
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 4/4 3/3 11 1/1 1/1
BRESE
Mr. Fok Chi Tat** 4/4 3/3 11 1/1 1/1
EHERLE”
* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or through = BEAEIGEE  SBIEAQT AR

other means of electronic communication in accordance with the

Company’s bye-laws.

* During the year ended 31 December 2022, each of these Directors =~ ==
participated in seminars and conferences as well as reading

newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general

business, real estate or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

The Group also continuously updates the Directors on the latest

developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements.

Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership

for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate >4

efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.
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Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the management
of the Company. Therefore, there should be a clear division of
the responsibilities at the board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that power is not concentrated in any
one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”) and Mr. Fok
Chi Tat Michael (“Mr. Fok”).

As at 31 December 2022, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for an initial term of two years which
is automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon
the expiry of the said term and subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. In
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation. A separate resolution has been set
for the approval of re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the Company for more than nine years.
The Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure the corporate governance practices of the Company are
not less exacting than those in the Code B.2.2 and B.2.3.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Nomination committee

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes; identify, selection or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of measurable aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional experience, skills and
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a
director of the Company, would be considered to ensure that the
Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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In order to ensure gender diversity at the Board level, the
Company commenced identifying suitable female candidates
who have necessary skills and experience to join the Board
during the year. However, the Company had difficulty finding a
suitable candidate due to factors including the control measures
brought about by COVID-19 and the overall downturn in real
estate industry in the PRC. The Board will continue to seek for
the appointment of a female member by the timeline stipulated
in the Listing Rules (i.e. before 31 December 2024) to ensure
the diversity of the Board members based on the above
considerations. Prior to that, the Company will develop a pipeline
of potential successors to the Board based on the Company’s
director nomination policy to achieve gender diversity of the
Board.

The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, update and review the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure that it aligns with the Listing
Rules.
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Remuneration committee

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Fok. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their individual remuneration packages.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision D.3.3(a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2022 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2021 and interim results for 2022; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2022 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as one of the essential elements in supporting the attainment of
its strategic objectives and sustainable development. The steps
taken in respect of gender diversity at Board level are stated in
the paragraphs under “Nomination Committee”.

The Company has also taken steps to promote diversity at all
levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment, training
and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. Various diversities’ comparison
in the workforce are set out in the ESG report of the annual
report of the Company. As at 31 December 2022, approximately
40% of the Company’s workforce (including the directors and
senior management) is female and approximately 60% is male.
The Board considered the current gender ratio of the overall
workforce is healthy and balance and target to keep such level in
the future.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2022 were amounted to approximately
RMBO.7 million and RMBO0.2 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2022 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify
key business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training in the year ended 31 December 2022 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, registered shareholders are entitled to put forward
proposals at general meetings if they (i) represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights at general meetings of the
Company at the date of deposit of the requisition; or (i) are not
less than 100 registered shareholders. The written requisition
stating the resolution(s) should be duly signed by the registered
Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The requisition will be verified by the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
same is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange
to include the proposed resolution in the agenda of the general
meeting.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a director, please refer to the procedures made available in the
Company’s website.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall
be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email

ir760hk@21cn.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of various information dissemination and
communication methods as stated in this report, and considered
that the shareholders’ communication policy has been effectively
implemented during the year. The Company will continue to
maintain communication with shareholders and investors, and
review the shareholder communication policies on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors of the
Company, they have confirmed that they complied with required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting
period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The By-Laws of the Company was amended and restated with
effective from 29 June 2022 and can be found in the website of
the Company.
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OVERVIEW

Pursuant to Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property
Group Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group” or “we”), hereby presents this
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“Report”)
to disclose ESG related matters that are relevant to the Group’s
business and have material impacts on the environment and
society for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “reporting
period”). Unless otherwise stated, the reporting period is from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
Board’s Oversight of ESG Issues

To fulfil our corporate responsibility, the Group has established
ESG policies, infrastructure and framework to govern relevant
ESG practices and processes. The Group’s sustainability
governance structure comprises the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
("ESG Committee”) and different line managers within the Group.
Their roles and responsibilities are as follows:

The Board: Directors meet semi-annually with ESG Committee
and senior management to review and provide direction on key
ESG matters, including:

° appropriateness and effectiveness of ESG governance
structure, strategy, management approach and internal
control system;

° material ESG risks and opportunities, as well as the
Group’s corresponding ESG policies and initiatives; and
° the Group’s ESG performance against ESG-related

targets.

In the second Board meeting of the year, the Board also reviews
and approves the disclosure of the Report.
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board’s Oversight of ESG Issues (continued)

ESG Committee: A management-level ESG Committee,
comprising key management personnel of the Group, drives
the development and execution of ESG policies across different
functions, and manages and coordinates the ESG efforts of the
Group. The ESG Committee reports directly to the Board on
ESG issues and provides updates on latest development in ESG
regulatory requirements to the Board.

Line Managers: Managers across different functions and business
lines of the Group executes the established ESG initiatives, and
tracks and reports ESG performance to ESG Committee.

ESG Management Approach and Strategy

Our management approach is to run our business in an ethically,
socially and environmentally responsible manner, and to support
and connect with the local communities that we serve. We
primarily focus on emission control and energy efficiency while
maintaining excellent financial returns from business operation.
We also strive to explore viable initiatives to continuously create
value to stakeholders in a sustainable manner. Details of our
assessment of material ESG issues are described in the “Material
ESG Issues Assessment” section. Foreseeing challenges from
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy rainstorm and
flooding in the regions where our major property development
sites are located, the Group has implemented a range of
preventive measures to mitigate the impact to our business and
stakeholders.

Review of Progress made against ESG-related goals
and Targets

The Board regularly evaluates the Group’s progress on our
sustainability targets, which are expected to be achieved in five
years. During the reporting period, the Group has made steady
progress on the 5-year sustainability targets as described in
Section A1 and A2.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
I&iﬁ %ié& k:AiF&l:i

MATERIAL ESG ISSUES ASSESSMENT ERRIR - B REABENTME
Stakeholder Engagement B ESH
The Group has proactively engaged with key stakeholders to ~ ZAfE@EFERE T B3 {H %L AT BRI EIR
understand their needs, opinions and expectations on key ESG  # - H @ REARTERENSTE - ﬁﬁ&,ﬁﬂ% '
issues, and has maintained continuous communication with them — WiEBIA TE éiﬁi{)ﬁiﬁﬁ?—r%@%
through the below channels:
External Internal
ShER B
Shareholders &
Residents Investors Community & Media Employees
TFE BRRREREE HtERKE E&
e Regular visits e Annual general meetings e Official website e Direct communication
EHRFAR RRBEFRE B 7 A8uh BERER
e Complaint hotlines e Annual, interim and ESG e Press releases e Meetings
BIRER reports s eE
* Resident property FE - PEIARIRIE - £ ® e Media enquiries e Emails and hotlines
management RERME HEEEH BE R EH
FEWEEE e Circulars and press e Training programs

releases
iR K R E e

e Announcements on the

website of HKEX

EFIERIE

HKEX#8 14
Government & Suppliers &
Regulators Business Partners Charitable Organisations
BREREEEN HAER R EB BN HEWE
e General liaison * Meetings e Corporate volunteering

—REE
e Communication on
policies

BRBRE

&
=

e Supplier review and
evaluation

HEREE hFHh
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MATERIAL ESG ISSUES ASSESSMENT

(continued)

Strategic Focus Among Priority ESG Issues

The Group has assessed the materiality of key ESG issues
associated with the business and operations of the Group and
prioritized these issues according to their importance to the

(&)
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ERRR - S RERBENTMA

B HERERBEABETNRBKEN

RE HEhBERELZETHRBEMN RS
Hif > ANEEEHEEARE RS KL ERRY
TERE  HERERAFENERNN  YWREZ

business and relevant stakeholders during the reporting period. ZZEHEBKNMABEHENEBURIEEL

The below key ESG issues are included in this Report.

;E'éo

RFF > AREBZUATEBRE - 8 RERE

Priority of
Focus Areas Materiality* Material ESG Issues Referencing Sections
EEMMN
BEHEE By BARE  #HERERHEE BEEH
Climate Change 1 Climate Risks and Hazards A4.  Climate Change
IR AR R BEY A4, RizE{t
Climate Change 2 Climate Adaptation and Resilience  A4.  Climate Change
RIx FEH IR E b A4, RizE{t
Environmental Protection 3 Decarbonization A1.  Emissions
R RE R ik Al HERR
Environmental Protection 4 Greenhouse Gas Emission and A1.  Emissions
RIERE Management Al HEIR
RERBHMIEERE
Environmental Protection 5 Resource Management and A2.  Use of Resources
RIERE Circularity A2, BIRFER
BIREEMAEIR A3.  The Environmental and
Natural Resources
A3. BRENBAER
Employment and Labour 6 Employee Rights and Welfare B1. Employment
Practices 1B BRI LB Bl. {Ef&
ERERETIER B2. Health and Safety
B2. REHEZE
B4. Labour Standards
B4. HEhAER|
Employment and Labour 7 Occupational Health and Safety B2. Health and Safety
Practices BERRRELD B2. fEHEZE
EEEBIER
Operating Practices 8 Responsible Supply Chain B5.  Supply Chain Management
ZiEEN Management B5. {HEHEER
BREENHERER
Community 9 Customer Health and Safety B6. Product Responsibility
Zan= BEFREEEZ S B6. EmE1E
Community 10 Community Wellness and B8. Community Investment
HE Engagement B8. t@iEE
iR R R 2

*

In descending order

* REENHF
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RIE - B RERHRE

REPORTING BOUNDARY

To determine the scope and content of disclosure in this Report,
the Board has assessed the materiality of the Group’s operations
in terms of key factors such as financial, total assets, sales
volume, and the number of construction sites of each location of
the Group during the reporting period.

Based on the assessment result, the Group has decided to
include in this Report ESG matters that are relevant to property
investment, development and management businesses of all
companies controlled by the Group. The ESG performance of
Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited, an associate
of the Group with effective interest of 30%, is not included in this
Report. No companies are newly added to the reporting scope
during the reporting period.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES APPLIED

& 5 E

REEABRENHRERELAR  EFSCHUY
% BEE HEERAKE SN HEHRE
MERMHBEFARAZFEARELENSE
Atk -

ERNFHEER  AEEDRESEAREBIZG O
FIBERRINMERE BRIEEEXHHEM R
B HEREARFEMARNRE - BMHIKEM
EERARAA(AERERFH30%E R ES B
BRBMERR e REARALET ARE
F o REREL B EANAREHENRF -

FREER zH&ERA

Principle The Group’s Application

A rEEZER

Materiality The ESG topics included in this Report have been assessed by the Board and ESG Committee,
according to importance to business and stakeholders.

BARM AREMENRE HERECTBECHEFTFHERE HSENERZESRBEHERLFENHENE

BT R -

Quantitative

g1t

Consistency

— i

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are used to measure and track the effectiveness of the Group’s
ESG performance. All information disclosed in this Report is prepared in accordance with the
Guide. Methodologies and assumptions adopted, as well as the sources of conversion factors used
for the calculation of KPIs are disclosed in this Report. Qualitative data are presented throughout
the report and in the Performance Tables in Appendix I.
RAREMER(EREZER D ARNEENRBASERE £ REAEMNARMYE - NRETH
BEHMAEERIREESIRS - AERANTERRBR - UEARGEBERERERNEREFHRIRR
RIEANKE - BCBBEREERER KM E—ERIIRPET] -

The ESG data presented in this Report are prepared using consistent methodologies to allow for
meaning comparison of the Group’s ESG performance over time unless otherwise specified in the
relevant part of the Report.

BRARESHELD SEHAI  AREZIINRE EFRER/BBRA BN AR - AERER
MHARENIRE HEREAXRRETEERNLR
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ENVIRONMENTAL A.

The Group strives to minimize adverse environmental
impact of its business operations by adopting
environmental protection practices over energy

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

consumption, use of resources and waste production.

A1,

Emissions A1l.

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data and evaluate significant
environmental impact brought by its operations.
The Group does not directly produce any significant
hazardous waste. Emissions caused by the
operations of the Group are primarily generated
from the consumption of electricity, paper and
petrol during its daily sales and office administration
activities. Environmental KPIs in connection
to our property investment, development and
management businesses during the reporting
period are disclosed below:

7B 15
REBENEIBRAE WEFOLTE - R
R RBWE L RBRARERD - R
EEHREHTHY BHERE -

RIE - HERERHS

29587

7N 52 B B 5 ST M T W R R B
WiHEAERBEETRNRETLE
ZERYE - AEEYEEEELE
I EERGERIEEY - AEBZE
EENHREENREBFIHE M
NRETBORSTHEEE S - R R
FUREE S BERY) - RS B
HEEMOMERE  EREEEZE
BAEBANREEREBUERREN
T

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F
Air Pollutants Emissions (Notes 1, 2)
ZRERYMBER (M - 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NO,”) 4,282 g 5,183 g
A& RE{D]) 4,2825% 5,133%
Sulphur oxides (“SO,”) 102 g 1319
matm(maim]) 1025% 13152
Particulate matters (“PM”) 315 g 378 g
fat ([ RER ) 3155 378%
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
BERB(RERE D HEK
Direct emission of GHG N/A (Note 2) N/A (Note 2)
mERBEEEN TERA(KEF2) TEARE2)
Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“CO,e”) (Note 3) 355,538 kg 352,167 kg
—arirgE ([ —afbikE 2 1) MEEm(#73) 355,538 AT 352,167 R/T
CO,e per employee 1,787 kg 1,693 kg
BEEN-SREE 1,787 7 1,693 fT
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FREEMERBEY (Hi4)
Paper waste disposed at landfills 561 kg 878 kg
EEEHEBENER 56141 fT 8781 T
Waste disposed per employee 3 kg 4 kg
BLEEREENEY 3R ART
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREBHRE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

The Group does not engage in activities that:

> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s six private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation.

The Group’s indirect CO,e emissions come from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and at sales locations.

The Group has engaged qualified construction
contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected, treated
and disposed by construction contractors. These
wastes are not directly incurred and controlled by
the Group and are thus excluded from the Group’s
environmental data. In consideration of limited
paper waste volume, the Group disposes the waste
to landfills through the waste disposal channel
managed by the different buildings’ management
service providers.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has required
the construction contractors to comply with
relevant laws and regulations. There are different
property management service providers for
managing waste disposals at different locations
of the Group. Regardless of the type of waste, we
closely monitor our contractors’ performance in
collecting, sorting and storing waste to avoid waste
leakage. During the reporting period, no incidences
of non-compliance with Environmental Protection
Law and Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations with significant impact on the
environment and natural resources relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes were reported.

For emissions of air pollutants, the emission of NO,,
SO, and PM for the reporting period remained at a
level similar to that in the previous reporting period.
The emission of NO,, SO, and PM for the reporting
period was reduced by approximately 17%-22% as
compared to the previous period. Such change was
attributed to the reduced usage of vehicles during
the city-wide lockdown in China in the reporting
period.
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A1,
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R - HEREBHRE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

The indirect emission of greenhouse gases per
employee has increased by 6% from 1,693 kg to
1,787 kg. The increased consumption of electricity
was caused by the expedition of construction
projects in Yangzhou and Xuzhou during the
reporting period.

The total paper waste disposal dropped significantly
from 878 kg to 561 kg during the reporting period,
equivalent to a decrease of 36%, which showed
that the paper-saving initiatives implemented by
the Group such as placing paper-recycling bins
in office, use of eco-friendly paper and two-sided
printing was effective.

In respect of mitigating the emission and waste from
daily business operation, the Group established a
target in 2021 to control the year-on-year change in
emissions of greenhouse gas and air pollutants and
waste produced at no more than 20% for the next
5 years, given that there are no significant changes
to business operation and property projects. In the
reporting period, the Group achieved a reduction in
emission of greenhouse gas and air pollutants and
waste produced by approximately 16%-36% with
only a slight increase of 1% in indirect emission
of carbon dioxide as compared to the 2021
baseline. Such reduction is mainly contributed by
the reduced usage of vehicles. We will continue to
closely monitor energy consumption and various
eco-friendly initiatives as described in Section A3,
as well as explore further adoption of renewable
energy and other green initiatives for emission
control.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or
energy intensive business activities. The types
of energy consumed by the Group are mainly
electricity and petrol. Water usage for the Group’s
daily sales and office administration activities is
minimal where both water supply and discharge
are solely controlled by the office building’s
property management. No issues in water sourcing
were encountered during the reporting period. In
addition, the Group does not involve directly in the
use/purchase of packaging materials in the usual
course of business. Relevant Environmental KPIs in
connection with the use of resources in conducting
our business during the reporting period are
disclosed below:

RiE - HERERHRE

RIB ()

A2. EREA
AEETENEERAEREED
ERORS) o A B PN A RE
MEBATHREH - AEBAE
WERBARTHESBAED -
KEHLFE R BT 2 A K1)
EEWELH o RIS - i
FIK BB IR o ook - AREER
AR EEBIRA T EEE SR B R
PRI AE R BRER o R IR HIRT
BERMEEREEGHAEROMAH
B RE IR HEN T

2022 2021
—E- —EF - —4F

Energy Consumption

BETFUH A%

Direct energy consumption from petrol fuel consumed

KB FERE VR B BERE

Indirect energy consumption from electricity purchased

KEFBFE NN EEERIER
Energy consumption per employee
BhilE 8 R RER

66,338 kWh 84,675 kWh
66,338 T LB 84,675 T s
669,408 kWh 660,131 kWh

669,408 T FLBF 660,131 F ELE:
3,697 kWh 3,581 kWh
3,697 T BB 3,681 F FLbF
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R - HEREBHRE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources (continued)

The direct energy consumption for the reporting
period decreased by 22% from 84,675 kWh to
66,338 kWh, which is a result of decreased petrol
consumption due to the aforementioned reduction
in vehicle usage.

The indirect energy consumption in the reporting
period remained at a level similar to that in the
previous reporting period.

Management is not aware of any incidences of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation {# # A R A B & 49 6E TR K )
on the use of resources.

In respect of energy efficiency in daily business
operation, based on the analysis on the energy
consumption level in the prior reporting periods, the
Group established a target in 2021 to control the
year-on-year change of the electricity and petrol
consumption at no more than 20% for the next 5
years, given that there are no significant changes
to business operation and property projects.
In the reporting period, the Group achieved a
reduction in energy consumption from petrol of
approximately 22% with only a slight increase of 1%
from electricity as compared to the 2021 baseline.
This is mainly attributable to the aforementioned
reduction in vehicle usage. The Group will continue
to closely monitor energy consumption and various
eco-friendly initiatives as described in Section A3,
as well as explore further adoption of renewable
energy and other green initiatives for improving
energy efficiency.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

A.

RE®E)

A2,

BEREA

RE A E AL R E FE 184,675
T ERER L 22%%=66,338 F FLEF -
LTy D E SRR E B
REFERR A PTE ©

5 IR O R AL RN AL L — 3R
SRR KT -

EEEBEVTAREREBERERD
(hE ARKAMBES L ERE)EHE
BERIERNTERER -

MEBERBEENEREEME -
ERBEREHENERERED
i EREHEERYERE L E
EREE  AKEER-_FT_—F
HIE B AR - EHIE N KURBRER
REAEFHE L& T EEB20% -
REEEE - BT - —FHRME
b AN EEIR TR BERR DK
22% * BHREFERIMNIE1% - &
T2HRAN LA EWEREAR
Do REBEBREZT Y EEEIRH
e X FASEI T 9 B TR IR IR B A
REFRE-SERAABERRRE
oAk B HBIAE R IRALEK -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of business and operations, the
Group's business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
Nonetheless, the ESG Committee regularly
assesses the environmental risk exposure of the
Group. Should there be any subsequent changes
to the relevant legislation or the Group’s operation,
the ESG Committee will report such changes to the
Board and adopt additional measures, if necessary,
to minimize the Group’s impact on the environment

and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;

> Set air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A4.

Climate Change

We have identified and assessed the impact of
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy
rainstorm and flooding in the regions where we
carry out our business. No imminent climate
risks are identified during the reporting period.
Nonetheless, in order to mitigate the above physical
climate risks, we have developed safety and
evacuation policy for typhoon risk and circulated
emergency response plan for the Group for
improving typhoon awareness and preparedness
of our employees and contractors. In the event of a
natural disaster, Employees and contractors would
be notified via timely emails and text messages.
In addition, we also perform regular inspection of
climate-resilient facilities at construction sites such
as drainage and windbreak netting to minimize the
impact of the above climate risks.

We will be actively establishing internal policy and
monitoring any regulatory changes and relevant
industry standards in our major business regions to
better adapt to and manage climate-related risks.
No significant transition risks are identified during
the reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices
B1. Employment

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal processes, and employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours
to provide equal opportunities throughout
recruitment and employment and to combat all
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the
reporting period, no incidences of non-compliance
with Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other relevant laws and regulations that have
imposed a significant impact on employment and
labour practices were reported. As at 31 December
2022, the Group has a total of 199 employees and
all of them are employed full time. Employment
KPIs in connection with our business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)
B1. Employment (continued)

o Employee Turnover
The Group highly values the contribution
made by employees along the business
development and recognizes the importance
of employee attraction and retention. A
turnover rate of 16.1% has been reported
during the reporting period. Relevant
employment turnover KPIs in connection
with our business during the reporting period
are disclosed below:

By Gender #5IE 5

[ ]
Female
it
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St

By Geographical Location
B ENEES

Hong Kong 0,
9 0.0%

China
3
By Age Group #FE 4051215
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30%39 5%
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NRB05%
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B2,

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
The Group also protects employees from
occupational hazards by providing them with
sufficient protective equipment and annual health
check-up. Safety guidelines are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook, which are distributed to all
employees. Employees are encouraged to report
any occupational hazards to the Group. Should
there be any reported hazards, Administration
Department will investigate the cases, report to the
senior management and take remedial actions in
a timely manner. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has continued flexible work arrangement and
distributed masks and sanitizers to all employees.
Employees are encouraged to work from home
during the city-wide lockdown in China. Employees
are required to measure body temperature and
sanitize hands before entering the workplace in
order to minimize the risk of outbreak at workplace.

During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Law of the People's Republic
of China on Work Safety, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, and other relevant laws
and regulations relating to the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards which are applicable to
the Group’s business. The Group has also ensured
that all employees are covered by the Social
Insurance plan. No work-related injuries or fatalities
were reported in the past three years including the
reporting period, and hence, no lost days due to
work injury were noted.

RiE - HERERHRE

HtEg e
EERLSIER(E)

B2.

REHELTE
REBHNARERMEMENER
REBEREZEHNTIERE - A&
EmESRH T ENERER
FERERE  REEEBEBE
MEE-DIRTHERENEETF
MAETAZ 2 - HMEZEE
MAEERFEMBEEREE - i
EARMAEE - THHMSRAEZ
ERM MaREEABRRRE
Fr ERER 1T B) © ;3R COVID-19
ZE AEEFEBENTIERS
WEMOERBESHTHEREE -
PR B K ARAE I T ST SR R - ERUE
BEBERPA - # ATIEIREER]
EEVASAEANHESFH - A
BIERZEEZREBENRABREER
& °

RHBEHMA - AEEET(PEA
RAMBZ2EEZL) (FEAR
HAMBIE R PR 0E ) KB B R A
SEEY  BREHEZETERER
REERELXBERSTEAUN
HARRAR KIAR » A& I
RTBEREDEZ L ERRETE
BE-ZF(BRBEHA)MERS
ERTERBENNZERIET - 5
SNE BB ER TG mBAH TIE
H o

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2022

47



48

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB .

HERERRE

B. SOCIAL (continued) t=2@m
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EEREZEIER(E)
B3. Development and Training B3. ZERIE
The Group places great emphasis in developing AEEEEERESER - 2HA
our employees and providing both internal and B K HNER B T35 )| LA D0 ok 1% 55 0 3
external staff training to enhance their knowledge RMEAT - AEEBEILIFIIBRE I
and skills. The Group has developed a Training EREIEBEEE c ERESTR
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year, BIEINERKPAERFRIEIEE - A
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate NERMERTEILER - AR
sufficient resources for staff development based COVID-19%& 15 + M4 & B &
on the results of Training Requirement Survey. WTWmENE - ARELEAST
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group did not A EBEEFI - A - RIREER -
organize any internal trainings in both current and FE=HERABEBRAREPINEER
prior reporting periods. However, external trainings T 453455 5/ N ) SN ERSE B o
organized by third-party recognised organizations RREHE - AERMELBNIESR
with approximate 534 training hours were R EIEIJERBEIIEZRI RN
provided to our employees during the reporting ™
period. Relevant development and training KPIs in
connection with our business during the reporting
period are shown below:
. Distribution of Employees Trained . ZEE DM
By Gender #5815 By Employee Category Z{ES 5212
General o
Fomcle A8 17.0% RRR 6.0%
Manag'\g:grl'?( 11.1%
l\g/l_;l; = 1.1% FREEAR
Management 6.7%
BREEAR
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RiE - HERERHRE

SOCIAL (continued) HtEg e
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EBERSZITER(E)
B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. ZERZI(E)
. Training Hours o B2 B gk
By Gender 1% 51215 By Employee Category Z{ESERIES
Senior
Female 2 43 gan;gemer;t g
i 51 8 PREEAR
Middle 41
Management
vaie & W 16 REEEAR 82
B ” 16 . Gleneral 44
Tieha 444

W Average training hours per employee trained &5 3I[{g & F 915 318 £
M Total training hours 4815 5)I1¥ £

B4.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations from
the Group policy and objectives. Employees are
encouraged to report any suspected cases of child
or forced labour at workplace via email. During the
reporting period, there were no reported incidences
of non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices

BS.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers who have provided products or services
with an aggregate value of RMB50 million or
above are considered as our major suppliers. All
the nine major suppliers are located in Mainland
China. The Group has established a contract
policy and corresponding evaluation procedures to
govern the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. We only engage suppliers who
provide environmental preferable products and
services that fulfill the national requirements of
Environmental Protection Standards issued by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection of China and
Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong. Relevant certifications are inspected during
supplier selection. The obligations of suppliers
and contractors with respect to environmental
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts. We also ensure the fair and reasonable
treatment of all suppliers and contractors in our
practices.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

BS.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

We require our suppliers and contractors to
follow the Code of Conduct set out by the Group
to encourage them to comply with all legal
requirements and ethical business practices.
Contractors are required to adhere to applicable
laws and regulations in their operations. They need
to adopt relevant measures to create a healthy,
safe, fair and corruption-free working environment.
The Code also encourages suppliers and service
providers to mitigate negative environmental
impacts and to improve their environmental
performance. Besides, we periodically review and
evaluate the environmental performance of our
major suppliers and assess whether their business
practices impose severe environmental and social
risks to the Group. If any non-compliance or
significant risk has been noticed, the Group would
take immediate action to rectify and enhance
monitoring. If the situation persists, the Group would
consider not to renew further business contracts
with the supplier.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other
applicable laws and regulations, and requires
construction contractors to immediately resolve
any defects or non-compliance incidences, where
necessary. The Group has entered contracts
with construction contractors to obtain their
commitment to carry out necessary operational
and quality assurance activities, and to comply
with regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.
During the reporting period, there are no reported
cases of non-compliance of Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, recalls of properties or
significant complaints from customers.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by applicable
requirements stipulated in related intellectual
property protection laws and regulations, such
as the Copyright Law of the People's Republic
of China and Trademark Law of the People's
Republic of China. All the software used by the
Group is legally obtained through subscription.
Verification and inspection of software copyrights
are conducted on an ongoing basis by the Group.
The Group has also established a comprehensive
intellectual property management approach for
self-developed intellectual properties for effective
protection from infringement. Additionally, the
trademarks of the Group including “Talent
Property”, “$TAH1E” and “¥1 K=" are registered
in both Hong Kong and China to avoid any
infringement.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

The Group highly recognizes the importance of
consumer data protection by establishing and
implementing various privacy policies. In order to
avoid data breach and manipulation, access to the
property contracts with sensitive consumer data
are restricted to authorized persons only. They are
also regularly monitored and maintained through
various data privacy tools.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and
is committed to conducting its business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to the prevention of
bribery, extortion and fraud are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook and other relevant ethics-
related internal policies so as to communicate the
Group’s requirements and to provide guidance to
employees in carrying out business and operational
duties. The Employee Handbook and internal
policies are subject to periodic review, and updates
are made, when necessary, to ensure that they
are in line with the latest development of Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations. To minimize the ESG risks embedded
in our business operations, we maintain stringent
internal control and risk management systems.
Abiding by the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has had no incidents of non-compliance to such
Ordinance. Management and staffs follow the anti-
bribery policies of the Group, upholds honesty,
integrity and fairness in all aspects of our business.
We maintain zero tolerance of any form of bribery.
All transactions are required to be documented in
an accurate, complete and timely manner, in order
to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
minimize the risk of bribery in the Group.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption (continued)
Whistle-blowing mechanism

The Group encourages all internal and external
stakeholders to report misconduct or unethical
business behaviours. Employees and suppliers can
file written reports via email to the mailbox specified
in Employees Handbook, employment contracts as
well as business contracts.

All allegations will be independently investigated
by Administration Department with the assistance
of relevant departments and business functions.
Independent senior management review the
investigation results and provide direction on
corrective actions. Investigation results and
progress of corrective actions are reported to the
Board where appropriate.

Anti-corruption training

The Group takes specific measures to encourage
integrity among employees. Our anti-corruption
and ethics-related policies are circulated and
well-explained to both employees during the
onboarding process and external suppliers before
arranging contract signing. The Group has been
developing the learning materials on anti-corruption
in the reporting period. The Group will hold anti-
corruption seminars and provide relevant learning
materials for all employees in 2023 to maintain
employees’ awareness towards anti-corruption and
all forms of unethical business behaviours.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
Community
B8. Community Investment

The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact
of our operational activities to the community.
All employees are encouraged to participate in
community activities and charitable activities as
contribution to the society.

o Public Health

In response to COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has spared no efforts in social
contributions by engaging in a number of
enhanced measures to reduce the risk of
COVID-19 outbreak in the community. Our
employees have been actively engaged in
the following community activities:

> Distributed 1,000 of RAT test kits to
the community;

> Delivered over 800 packs of food and
necessities to COVID-19 infected
individuals under home quarantine;
and

> Over 100 employees participated
in various anti-pandemic initiatives
of the government such as Health
Code inspection and supporting the
execution of nucleic acid testing in
the community.

° Community Welfares

As COVID-19 pandemic continues to impose
adverse impact on economic activities,
the Group has established the Rental
Concession Scheme for properties and
offered eligible tenants with rent concessions
or waivers to lighten their economic
pressure, amounting to over RMB2.5 million
under the scheme.
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APPENDIX | - SOCIAL PERFORMANCE g — — e RAIIXK
TABLES
Employment Practice BRER
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
Total Workforce HWEB A
Total Number of Employees BEBAE 199 208
By Gender MR
Male B 121 126
Female 4 78 82
By Employment Contract BREREN
Full-time employees HEE 199 208
Part-time employees *BEE = -
By Age Group BRERA
Under 30 30BRIA T 47 39
30-39 30E3975% 68 85
40 and above 407 S PA £ 84 84
By Employee Category ZIESER
Senior management SREEE 15 15
Middle management FRERE 18 16
General employees TiRESR 166 177
By Geographical Location BBV E
Mainland China B R B 197 206
Hong Kong B 2 2
Total Employee Turnover EBEHRAE
Employee Turnover Rate EERAE 16.1% 23.1%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by RUEBIEI DR AR
Gender
Male B 17.4% 22.2%
Female i 14.1% 24.4%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Age ZE#HARESNEER KL=
Group
Under 30 305 AT 23.4% 41.0%
30-39 30E395% 20.6% 23.5%
40 and above 40 R PA £ 8.3% 14.3%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by BBV BE S HNEERKALLER
Geographical Location
Mainland China B KB 16.2% 23.3%
Hong Kong BH - -
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APPENDIX | - SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

TABLES (continued)

Development and Training

B R B

By ik — - ERE IR @)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Development and Training for Workforce €& Y2 R Bz 3|
Total number of employees trained ZollE B g 13 16
Total number of training hours 4R L% 50 B 534 584
Percentage of Employees Trained by EMRESHNZIEET DL
Gender
Male B 1.1% 2.4%
Female 4 17.0% 15.9%
Percentage of Employees Trained by RESEANEINIIEET AL
Employee Category
Senior management SREEE 6.7% 6.7%
Middle management PREEE 11.1% 18.8%
General employees LEES 6.0% 6.8%
Average Training Hours Completed per BB EEEEES RN
Employee by Gender bt NS
Male S 16 17
Female 4 43 41
Average Training Hours Completed per REBERNEINEREETHN
Employee by Employment Category I E
Senior management BRERRE 8 56
Middle management FRERERE 41 40
General employees LTiRER 44 34
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 44 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 16
of this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.

The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold 58.3% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers in its continuing operation.
Sales to the largest customer represents 12.4% of the total
sales. Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest suppliers
and contractors accounted for 54.3% of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier and contractor
included therein amounted to 22.3% of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages
76 to 79 and page 222.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 and note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

There was no substantial investment and acquisition.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share options and
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 32 and 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE
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in notes 15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Consolidated Results

EE
AEER-_ZE-_—_F+_A=+—HZEEFS
BN RA VB RARN S0 -

MBRE
meXE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—BEC-f T ZZZTF T-hF ZZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT ARETIT ARETFIT ARETFIT

Revenue Wz 276,113 343,992 348,216 277,653 278,668

(Loss)/profit before income B FATSH Al

tax (BE),/%H (1,364) 197,239 (116,132) (176,290) 101,397

Income tax expenses e (37,784) (33,209) (74,036) (14,817) (40,510)

(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER),/EH (39,148) 164,030 (190,168) (191,107) 60,887
(Loss)/profit attributable to: 7] A &L

(B518),/ &

Owners of the Company KRBHEE A (39,148) 164,030 (100,868) (99,844) 69,625

Non-controlling interests R - - (89,300) (91,263) (8,738)

(39,148) 164,030 (190,168) (191,107) 60,887
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= ==
EEEREE
Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities mEEE  EmRkAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-Zf 2% ZE2-TF T-NF ZET)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 911,632 1,090,409 979,312 1,022,373 1,266,364
Current assets TEEE 3,118,981 3,130,248 3,287,386 3,002,984 2,353,925
4,030,613 4,220,657 4,266,698 4,025,357 3,620,289
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mENaE 1,851,182 2,037,299 1,862,199 1,588,253 1,423,477
Non-current liabilities EREEE 509,295 474,771 806,889 629,081 232,723
2,360,477 2,512,070 2,669,088 2,217,334 1,656,200
EQUITY s
Attributable to: THIA LR
Owners of the Company VAN/NETEZ Z =N 1,669,936 1,708,387 1,746,972 1,848,085 1,947,888
Non-controlling FEfE R
interests 200 200 (149,362) (40,062) 16,201
Total Equity S BE 1,670,136 1,708,587 1,597,610 1,808,023 1,964,089
DIRECTORS =E

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date RAFEREEARBRER @ RABESNT ¢
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman) R BEE(EE)
Mr. LUO Zhangguan EETEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. LO Wai Hung EEELE

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong BRESYE

Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael EEERE

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors RIBEAARG 2 AR4HEA| - 2BEFHEABBESLR
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Zhang  WEEEIREF « R B EREEE T EBNIE
Gao Bin and Mr. Lo Wai Hung will retire by rotation and, being ERERAFAE FHESER  HEREFEERLT
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming  FAE EEET o

annual general meeting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 19
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

REERN  BREEAAN j’IE‘ETIEJZEETﬁﬁ
BARRERBEBRERNEZN D 2 EERITR
ZaK -

EERITHRAEN A QB S A 85
EEZ RS - EERO R ERE2E
#wRER

RZZBEZZF+ZA=+—08 EFRITHEH
AR R S CH A MBI E B (R E 5 R A GG
([FEHREEEG ) BEXVEZ RE) 25 - 48
B S EREE BRAEARBEESFRAE
1|7kf§|J%XV“|3%7&8’\“BL%D$ A M 22 FT Y
HAEE(BRESREFESF LB KB @K
NHESRIERB cEEXER) HERER
RATIBBEZRLFRAERIIEIS2GRETERFE
ZEEMEENERNERE - JIRBEEESTAS
ITBAARR RE MRS ER T Tt

Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
QR E#IT
EEnE B REEME KRG #E RAB DL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 111,095,000 1.06%
R=A fEA
Interest in controlled corporation 6,474,393,939 62.89%
TS P2 IR e
Luo Zhangguan Personal 1,380,000 0.01%
BB A
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.00%
HRE A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2022, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or
the chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEEWMEE

FERRRADBARDRAEABRS 2
EERER

BARRARESHITHEHMM  RZ2T ==
TZA=+—8 FEZERF(ARREFTHITH
HBELBR M) AR A B AR 17 kAR B AR 15 HE A AR 1K 3%
% NG IEHIEXVELFE2 K35 B E X ABR AN A 7
RN AR BIRIEFH & A E 5G] FE 336157
EETEZECMEE s ERLEAWT

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
AR RABE BT
8 Mt RO EZHE BRETDLE
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,474,393,939 62.89%
Note: Kat -
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Trend Holdings Limited % #F 2 8 17 iR 7

directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
21 April 20283, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during

the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements which were fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Group did not enter into any other
connected or continuing connected transactions during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 20 to 31 of the annual report.

MARBESBARD T 2022F F#H

BEROIEER 2L

RERERER AR HECFAMBEAREE
DEEMRFEAEARREEATEBERARFRL
EAEMEABR RO NERITMES -

R SR 8 1 R

SRR AR & | — B EE S - RFEARFRE
I R 7 RAF B AT AN B 175 5% -

BrBERE
ARE 2 ARABLEEEBE G - BRE
HEO TP EF AR RIRLLBIARAREEE R
B AR BB IR ) -

BE LEIEEES
ARFREMBARFAMMBE - HEREE
AARRBHEME

FAERBBALIRS

Briar e M mRME40MERMABA LR ZBEE
%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁtm%EH'J%MAEZEEZ%KXM\ NS
EREBE—_T-_—_F+-_A=+t—HBULMBFE
WE M EMEMEESFERERS -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 12 June 2023, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 7 June 2023 to 12
June 2023, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer documents
should be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6
June 2023.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Gao Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, the PRC
31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

2

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

BR B @ 3T BT F R AT A MR )

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (“the Group”) set out on pages 76 to
224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

BYZEMBES

FAREXSEE
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As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB552,700,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 2, 4 and 15.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEEEXEEE)
REWEWGEE)

EENERRNNEEREELER

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer and the management
regarding the reasonableness of methodology and key
assumptions being used.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for investment properties.

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed

properties held for sale

The key audit matter

ELCHABEMATEIE B IEMEEN

BEEUMEEERGEETEANBARER &
BHCEAETHER - HPEREREERZENX
- RREBMMBANMEENMEE MEMHE

THFE ©

EEENB L ERD R B IR E L B E (B 7 E
BARBE 2 ABIEEITWR o

BEE BEBEEERRTHREMEETE
HEL -

i ERERERRETYERSFELHEZ
R TYRNTERFE

HREELER

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB523,054,000 and RMB2,352,041,000 respectively, net
reversal of impairment loss of properties under development
RMB45,456,000 recognised during the year ended 31 December
2022, as disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. To support the estimation
of NRV, the Group engaged an external valuer to estimate
the current market value of the completed properties held for
sale and properties under development. Given that the Group
had significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV
assessment as one of the key audit matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BYZEMBES

FEEXEE(8)
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EERBRRNNEEREERER

We assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and
expertise and read their terms of engagement with the Group
to determine whether there were any matters that might have
affected their objectivity or whether there were scope limitations
imposed upon their work.

We discussed with the valuer and the management the
methodology and assumptions used in determining the current
market value of the properties.

We obtained cost to completion budgeting and compare with
that in previous year and checked to the additional construction
contract on a sample basis. We obtained the understanding to
the internal control of payment cycle of construction cost for
completeness.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for the properties.

Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale, we
sample-checked the current market value of properties used by
the valuer to the adjusted market prices of comparable properties
in the similar location near the end of the reporting period and
determined whether there was any significant variance.

With regard to the properties under development, we discussed
with the management of the Group and the valuer how they
arrived at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated
selling prices when they are completed and the estimated costs
to complete, and checked to the source data on a sample
basis. Further, we compared the market value determined by
the valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment loss had been provided.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

Ho Wan Nei
Practising Certificate number: P06991
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e RkEMEEWARE

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2022 2021
—E-_C —E—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR#FT ARBFIT
Revenue &= 5 6 276,113 343,992
Cost of sales and services HE KRS AL A (177,489) (210,129)
Gross profit EF 98,624 133,863
Other revenue oA U 5 7 9,452 13,724
Distribution costs 2 EHA AR (9,576) (15,799)
Administrative and other T REMSERT
operating expenses (60,178) (59,304)
Fair value changes on investment % &Y% v N FEE
properties (49,445) (12,040)
Fair value changes on a financial AF{EFFABEZMNEMEEZ
asset at FVTPL NEEEZ 3,294 -
Reversal of impairment loss of  ZE R ¥ 2R AR D
properties under development 45,456 12,000
Reversal of/(allowance for) R WERTEREESE
expected credit losses for trade B[], (B )
receivables 62 (107)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H&—RM B R Az Uk 8 - 28,823
Share of result of an associate P —REEE & A A E4A 18 (4,427) 129,710
Gain on losing control of a KEH—RHHBARIZEHE Y
subsidiary e - 8,641
Finance costs & AR 9 (34,626) (42,272)
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBLAT(EB), BT 10 (1,364) 197,239
Income tax expense FriSfiM X 13 (37,784) (33,209)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(EB), %A (39,148) 164,030
(Loss)/profit attributable to: T % A L &L (B54E), & F :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Y =N (39,148) 164,030
Non-controlling interests IEPER - -
(39,148) 164,030
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SmEBRERAEMEERARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt AR¥ T AREFIT
Other comprehensive income/ £EHME2EK A (FHE)
(loss) for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HEgrgEaln Bz Bam
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 BTk 2
translation of financial fEHZw
statements of foreign
operations 697 (867)
Other comprehensive income/ FEHEM2EW A (EiE)
(loss) for the year 697 (367)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2HEH(EE) WAELE
income for the year (38,451) 163,663
Total comprehensive (loss)/ THATEEZE(ER)
income attributable to: U A48 %8 -
Owners of the Company KABER A (38,451) 163,663
Non-controlling interests eI - -
(38,451) 163,663
RMB RMB
AR# ARB
(Loss)/earnings per share sR(BR) &R 14
Basic and diluted EARREE (0.380) cent® 1.594 cent®
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira BEUIR R &

2022 2021
—E-F T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥ T ARBTFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties B 15 552,700 585,960
Plant and equipment VS 16 7,818 3,370
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 3,509 5,264
Interests in an associate Il N o s 18 346,135 482,539
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE ~ &e RHAMER
other receivables BRI 22 354 6,229
Deferred tax asset BELEFIREE 31 1,116 7,047
911,632 1,090,409
Current assets REEE
Properties under development R 19 523,054 2,003,789
Completed properties held BIEREZER T Y
for sale 20 2,352,041 673,460
Trade receivables JE W BR R 21 2,609 4,681
Prepayments, deposits and other {4 7X18 « 124 K& H i jElk
receivables R 22 133,483 198,698
Contract costs BRI 23 - 700
Tax recoverable AR E IR 30,934 15,364
Financial asset at FVTPL BATEFFABGRZEREE 24 - 7,920
Pledged deposit ERRES 25 - 3,386
Cash and cash equivalent B MkBEEEEY 25 76,860 222,250
3,118,981 3,130,248
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERTBR X 26 518,579 456,049
Accruals and other payables FEEtE R R A ET I8 27 100,984 158,124
Contract liabilities BHNEE 28 765,802 814,653
Lease liabilities HEBaE 29 1,729 1,511
Provision for tax TRIB RS 372,728 338,286
Borrowings B 30 91,360 268,676
1,851,182 2,037,299
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,267,799 1,092,949
Total assets less current HEERRBEE
liabilities 2,179,431 2,183,358
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BUIR 5 2=

(As at 31 December 2022) (R=—FE=—4#+=A=+—H)

42 A
A Ny =]

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR FT AREFor
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 2,024 3,753
Borrowings =Ee 30 347,096 294,056
Deferred tax liability ERFEE & 31 160,175 176,962
509,295 474,771
Net assets EEFE 1,670,136 1,708,587
EQUITY s
Share capital f& A 33 37,628 37,628
Reserves HiE 34 1,632,308 1,670,759
Equity attributable to the owners ZANAFHEAE A EIHE LS
of Company 1,669,936 1,708,387
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR T 200 200
Total equity B 1,670,136 1,708,587

Zhang Gao Bin

REE
Director
BE

Luo Zhangguan
EETW
Director
B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/—_]_\ EE@/)H:E%E

2022 2021
s T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARMFT AREFT
Cash flows from operating REEKRIMBZHERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before tax BREiAT (E518), s A (1,364) 197,239
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income on financial REHEN AR EREE
assets carried at amortised B WA
costs 7 (6,079) (3,743)
Fair value changes on WEYERNTEE
investment properties 15 49,445 12,040
Fair value changes on a BEAFHEFABEHNEREE
financial asset at FVTPL N EEE 24 (3,294) -
(Reversal of)/allowance for FEW AR RTEHR = BB 18
expected credit losses for (@), BiE
trade receivables 10 (62) 107
Management fee income from  fEUR — B & A R B IR B IA
an associate 7 (6) (310)
Interest income on loan to an 48 F — & B BRZHE
associate 1451)\ 7 (17) (973)
Reversal of impairment loss of 2R Y% 7 R EEEEE
properties under development (45,456) (12,000)
Gain on losing control of a KEH—RMBARIEHIRE L
subsidiary g = (8,641)
Share of result of an associate 2k —EHE & A 7 %4E 18 4,427 (129,710)
Finance costs EhE AR 9 34,626 42,272
Gain on disposal of HE—MEE AR 2 W
a subsidiary 8 - (28,823)
Depreciation of plant and WE MR ETE
equipment 10 3,339 1,751
Depreciation of right-of-use FHESENE
assets 10 1,755 1,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/j_\ IE%/)HJE%%

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
Operating cash flow before EEESEPRILERS
working capital changes mE 37,314 70,800
Increase in properties under BRTMERBEREZ
development and completed B8 T8
properties held for sale (168,090) (277,988)
Decrease in trade receivables JE W BR R > 2,134 2,008
Decrease/(increase) in TEFRIE -~ ke REAEU
prepayments, deposits and BRFOR A (3800)
other receivables 65,250 (27,057)
Decrease in contract costs & KRR AR D 700 1,656
Increase/(decrease) in trade f‘ﬁﬁ% R, O d)
payables 62,530 (19,579)
Increase in accruals and other Bzt & B M H M EMNERR
payables 0 12,038 16,902
(Decrease)/increase in contract  &XBECED ), &0
liabilities (48,851) 296,387
Cash (used in)/generated from  &&EE%(FTRH) B2 RE
operations (36,975) 63,129
Land appreciation tax paid B Lt ER (4,039) (13,340
Income tax paid B FTER (25,750) (26,263)
Net cash (used in)/generated KL% (FA) FE2HS
from operating activities HEE (66,764) 23,526
Cash flows from investing REXKFB2ERERE
activities
Proceed from a financial asset  RERAFEFAEBRZ
at FVTPL TREERIE 11,214 -
Deposit paid for purchase of BEREMKE NS
plant and equipment - (5,935)
Purchase of plant and equipment B & &= & 2% & (1,852) (599)
Addition to investment property REEREWE (485) -
Release of pledged deposits fERRE IR IR S 3,386 -
Net cash outflow of losing control 4k 2 ¥ — RS i | A T3 4 >
of a subsidiary BemoF5E = @)
Proceed from disposal of a REMBAR Z WS
subsidiary - 340,580
Interest received [=E NS 6,079 3,743
Dividend received from an R E— &R RWER RS
associate 60,000 -
Net cash generated from REXBAB RS FHE
investing activities 78,342 337,786
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ EE@/)H:E%E

2022 2021
—E-C—F T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥FT AREFT
Cash flows from financing BMEXECRBERE
activities
Acquisition of additional interests Uz & — KB A &) 2 BEIMERS
in a subsidiary = (24,000)
Proceeds from other secured HBERERMSHRIE
loans 133,800 16,000
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (135,976) (35,717)
Repayment of other secured EEREMBERER
loans (122,100) (162,100)
Net movement of amount due to J&f — B & A 7] 718 &
an associate FE 249 (46)
Net movement of amount due to JEN —Z#ITEERIEZH)
an executive director FE 3,143 947
Finance costs BRE A (34,626) (42,272)
Repayment of principal of lease HiEHE&AEAS
liabilities (1,511) (1,836)
Net cash used in financing BMEXKFTACREEHE
activities (157,021) (249,024)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HE&RI|WEZEYWCRL)
and cash equivalents EINFEE (145,443) 112,288
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzRekResE
1 January =47 222,250 109,999
Effect of foreign exchange rate ~ [EXR# &) &
changes 53 (37)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+t A=+—HzHR&K
31 December HeEEY 76,860 222,250
Analysis of cash and cash ReERBESEBYIW
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRS 25 76,860 222,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAREEDE

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

LOEEEIN
Fairvalue
trough
other
Currency Capital comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation ~ Capital Contributed  redemption income  Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve reseve  reserve loss  Sub-otal interests Total equity
#I%E
ghite EAEE  HALH

kx  RAEE  BE  EARE  MARR  BE GEWEE  IERR RMEE b RERRE  RufE
RMBOO  RMBOO  AMBOOO  RMBOW  RMBUX  RMBOX  RMBO®  RMBUX  RMBOO  RMBO®  RMBUX  RMBO0O
ARRTE ARRTE ARRTL ARRTT AREFZ ARETZ ARRTZ ABRTE ARRTL ARKTL ARKFT AREFR

Asat 1 January 2022 ACEIZE-A-H0 3628 2962005  (240728) 81 301,799 82 (1,000) 23,404 (1,396,564) 1,708,367 200 1,708,587

Loss for the year FRER = = = = - - - - M (149 - (o
Other comprehensive inoome. EEEM2ARA :

for the year:

Bchenge dferenceon  BEENEH?

ransaton of nencil -~ 1R

saementoffodgn  EREE

Operations - - 697 - - - - - - 697 - 697
Totdl comprehensiieloss 2 EFELE

for the year - - 697 - - - - - (%9148  (38451) - (38451)
Translerto BYEATESR

non-dsrioutable H

reserve fund - - - - - - - 3,096 (3,09) - - -

Asat31 December 2022 R-E--%
tZB=1-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,031) 861 301,799 82 (1,0000 26,500 (1,438,808) 1,669,936 200 1,670,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEmEER

Atroutable to owners of the Company

FATREARE
Fai vale
fvough
oher
Currency Captal - comprenensie Non-
Share trangiaion Captal  Contrbuted ~ redemption come  Stafutory - Accumulated controling
premium eee esee surplus Tesene fesene 1esene lss  Subfotal interests  Total eouity
RATE
ghih ERRE AR
Rkl Hh EMER  fARR B 2AMABRE  fRBR  ZEE Nt HARER  EREE
RIBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RUBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBUOO0  RWBOOD
T ARKTT ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Asat 1 January 2021 AEZ-E-A-H 2982905 (240.361) 8t 301799 8 (1,28 16274 (1350,968) 1746972 (149,862 1,597,610
Proft for the year EgEl - - - - - - - 1RO 164030 - 1800
Other comprehensiveloss for B2 TElE :
the year:
Echenge dferenceon  BEENER28HH
ransaonof fnancel ~ KZEXEE
statement of foreign
Operations - (367) - - - - - - (367) - (367)
Totel comprehensiveincome £E2EYNAE
for the year - (367) - - - - - 164030 163,663 - 163,663
Adctiona nterest R-EREATHEN
asubsiday (rotg %Eﬁﬁ(//fﬂf/ - - - - - - - 02248 (02248 178248 (24000)
Disposdl of asubsidary ~ RE-FMEBAE - - - - - - - - - (868 (28,680)
Losing contolofa subsicry %5 -EBAAE
i - - - - - 23 - (259 - - -
Translerto ERETIRATRE
non-dsributable i
resgnve fund - - - - - - 7,130 (7,130) - - -
Asat 31 December 021 H=§=-%
+2f=1-A 2982905 (240,728) 8t 301799 8 (1,000 23404 (12396564 1,708,387 200 1,708,587
note: The Group has acquired 49% equity interest of a subsidiary  ffz2 : ANEBERMMEB AT — R IEITREE RS
from a non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary at a cash KRB AREE24,000,0007T 8 & — BB
consideration of RMB24,000,000 to enable more efficient NEIZ49% R HE - LAE A & IR 5% ot
management of the subsidiary. Details of the transaction were E T o XSG TEHBEHINAATR =

set out in the announcements of the Company published on 20 =
January 2021 and 27 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI, is
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (ii) property investment
and (iii) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As the major business
of the Group is located in the Mainland China, the
directors consider that it will be more appropriate to adopt
RMB as the Group’s and the Company’s presentation
currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and certain properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out as below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A

2.

BIBHRRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, based on opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel, taking into consideration
of the relevant contract terms and customary
practice within the industry in the PRC, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the
management of the Group concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment for the work performed to date at all times
during the contract prior to transfer of the relevant
properties to customers. Revenue from sales
of residential properties in the PRC is therefore
recognized at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at
the point that the customer obtains the control of
the completed property and the Group has fully
received the consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 2%-59% (2021:
1%-37%) of the contract value as deposits from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreements. Such advance payment result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
property construction period.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

(ii) Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfiled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Revenue from other source

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical
expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property, properties under
development or completed properties held for sale as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance system
established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension
insurance contributions are recognised as part of the
cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong, which is a defined contribution retirement
scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based
on minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale,
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be used by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right
of use assets and contract costs to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs (continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs (continued)

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Properties under
development/properties for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to
the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from completed properties
held for sale to investment property when there is a
change in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business, which is evidenced by the inception
of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to
be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability
and it is not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

2.

FESHBERE®)

B
EARERBESFRAAERFEECE
EHEE)  MAKERAEFTETZE
ERBE Rl SEFHE 5 N RIAR - RIZARE
R -

BARBENSRANBERRAEEFR
BEEMBERENREMR  EREED
HZEEABENRRETEERE - HE#
BAGRTEERBETHNREREFTE
AIREEEAZSFREAENRE(HE
RHEEZEBEAN) -

WAEBEALR N ERNAERXRERE %
EEEPEHA S - AENI DRI
RBBERE  ABARGAMBHRERT T
VARERR ©

AEEFETFHNEETHEENENE
BRRERECK ARG - WAREN 1B
FERERIARBERIE 2R B IR HARKE

FERE - B AT RE IR B RS B 2
RAEVBRERANERBB(RIELRFR

BRMmAREELASER[RE)

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2022

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 Business Combination applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(if) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other revenue in profit
or loss.

(ifi) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposit and cash and cash
equivalent) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

FTESHBERE @)

SWMIAE)
ETHEE(E)

(i

FERECEREE
E-HRZAHERMEEMGRE
RenBER T NEEZEMHELE
B AIRREMEECHRERER
B eREELREERELER
BESRATEHZ AR

@  BEITAHBERALBREAY
PR B

() EREH WEHNBEHE
1

© ERAERERZ ERA
HE A B A A B R B
ZEERBOES BT
HAE AR TG Mt
Z#E

d BERABAUREREKETH
b ER K

) =EMEEZEEMSRAME
GEAINEPIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
designate the investment as at FVTOCI at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 or on initial recognition of
the investment, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal
amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, accruals and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ifi) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(ifi) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

FESHBERE®)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(o)

(continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(il

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16
- Proceeds before Intended
Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the Amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
year.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

BRANHE RAEETT BB U B
#E

el

FEBFERNEBITETBME
e 3]

RAFE  AEBEXEATIHEES
AEicg((EEstMAg RAR-F
ToF-A-R¥ZRFARZFEHRR
HIAEMEEIERT EBM B RELER] - LA
RUR B P IFHK -

RA
HE

ERVBREER HSEREZRERL

F3RmI1BFT

ERUBREERN  RIZTZ—F5-A

F165% 2185T “TREZHFERS
HEARSRE

B EA mE - BEREE

F165% 2 185T RS Rl
TS5/ IE

B EA BB K- BLOKA

FITR2IEFT

BERUBRERD  ABFBREEL

Z1EET —E-N\FE
—TIEEY
FEUGE

REEERRIER] BRI HHREERE A
SERKTFERBEFE ZHBRRL,
SRBARBRZEGRAMBRRZBES
AT EEATE -

AEBHAEBTMRAFERRERZ
FER - EFT R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS
17)

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Insurance Contracts'

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction'

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-Current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

B S ot Ml & B R fhE AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating in
the PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among different tax jurisdictions in various cities of
the PRC, and those subsidiaries have not finalised
all of their land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax and tax
provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. As a result,
the Group is subject to income taxes on the rental
income of its investment properties in the PRC
and deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties are recognised.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale for the
Group are approximately RMB523,054,000
(2021: approximately RMB2,003,789,000)
and approximately RMB2,352,041,000 (2021:
approximately RMB673,460,000), respectively
and the completed properties held for sale by
the associate is approximately RMB203,943,000
(2021: RMB208,867,000). During the year ended
31 December 2022, an amount of RMB45,456,000
(2021: RMB12,000,000) reversal of impairment loss
was made for properties under development. The
Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale according to their net realisable value
pbased on the realisability of these properties. Net
realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
(including land costs). Net realisable value for
completed properties held for sale is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling
price based on prevailing market conditions, less

applicable variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v) Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for the properties with similar
lease and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(if) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

(ifi) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using
capitalisation rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent and professional qualified valuer.

The fair value losses from investment properties are
disclosed in Note 15.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(vi)

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will be
recognised in the profit or loss upon the recognition
of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other
costs relating to the sale of properties, these costs
are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(viijj Revenue recognition from sales of products
with no alternative use at a point in time

Under HKFRS 15, control of the asset is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date at
all times during the contract period. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether in
the customary practice such right to payment is
enforceable. The Group has based on the terms of
the contract and considered the relevant local laws
and the customary practice that apply to those
relevant contracts and an opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel. Based on the assessment by
the Group’s management, the terms of the relevant
sales contracts do not create an enforceable right
to payment for the Group at all times during the
contract period. Accordingly, the sales of products
with no alternative use is considered to be
performance obligation satisfied at a point in time.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ZHER
The Group is organised into three (2021: three) business REBRI=F(ZF=—%F : =F) %%
units, based on which information is prepared and BA WAERERSERTIZRRAMEZ
reported to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the EBBARUEAERRAAEREER
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of RARE °
performance.
Information of the Group’s operating and reportable AEFEzEEBERABRED B2 ERT R
segments are shown as follows: N
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_E—_—_5+-_A=+—HLEE
Property Property Property
development investment management Total
WERR MERE MEERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARYEFT AREFT
Reportable segment revenue EE e
Revenue e 253,557 11,125 11,431 276,113
Timing of revenue recognition BEBHHREERF155
for those within the scope of EE AW ANREERE
HKFRS 15
A point in time — (B 253,557 - = 253,557
Over time e B - - 11,431 11,431
Revenue from other source HityJoR 2
Rental income HeWA - 11,125 - 11,125
Total st 253,557 11,125 11,431 276,113
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TR & 2 HiEF,/ (&E) 104,196 (42,368) 1,049 62,877
Share of result of an associate SME—HEEREEE (4,427)
Finance costs BAKA (34,626)
Income tax expenses FEHEX (37,784)
Unallocated expenses AAERX (37,934)
Unallocated income AOEKA 12,746
Loss for the year FEER (39,148)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 3,057,125 561,470 1,572 3,620,167
Corporate assets NEEE 410,446
Group assets EBEE 4,030,613
Reportable segment liabilities AREHHEE 1,620,367 147,298 1,539 1,769,204
Corporate liabilities ARAR 591,273
Group liabilities EBERE 2,360,477
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHEB )
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_ZT-—F+-A=+—HILEE
Property Property Property
development investment  management Total
MEER MERE MEER BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREF AREFT AREFT
Reportable segment revenue AHRED HHE
Revenue W 316,584 15,336 12,072 343,992
Timing of revenue recognition BEEBUBREERFE155
for those within the scope of BEARANERRY
HKFRS 15
A point in time —{AK2 316,584 - - 316,584
Over time BE R R - - 12,072 12,072
Revenue from other source Ht R ks
Rental income AL ON - 15,336 - 15,336
Total st 316,584 15,336 12,072 343,992
Reportable segment profit/(loss) WK% 5 %7/ (HE) 102,089 (1,138) 1,322 102,273
Share of result of an associate AME—EBERTEE 129,710
Finance costs BEAKAK (42,272)
Income tax expenses ERHAY (33,209)
Unallocated expenses AOERX (40,660)
Unallocated income AABWA 48,188
Profit for the year EEEA 164,030
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 2,915,902 593,326 1,512 3,510,740
Corporate assets NEBE 709,917
Group assets SBEE 4,220,657
Reportable segment liabilities BE Rt 1,585,202 287,035 1,682 1,873,919
Corporate liabilities NGINEE 638,151
Group liabilities fEEE 2,512,070
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEER
The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses MEMD I EFNBEMA T ERRKRA
is adjusted (losses)/profits before interest and taxes. To BEBBERZERAE(EER), GH - BE
arrive at adjusted (losses)/profits, the Group’s (losses)/ BUCAR(EBB), A AEE(EER) S
profits are further adjusted for items not specifically wATRAEEFBRERNS I ZEE
attributed to individual segments, such as share of results (Bl DB & A RIEE - BEKAK « BT
of an associate, finance costs, income tax expenses, BHAS  FIBEEREME S EBRA KT
interest and other allocated income and corporate TTBRCA) B — 2% -
administration costs.
Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties, NHEETEBREEDE  BTHRER
certain plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, HiE - TREEE - ENFUE - ATRS
prepayments, certain deposits and other receivables, REMEKIER 2 &fZe  ERTY
pledged deposit, properties under development, ¥ BEREZERIYWE - BURERK -
completed properties held for sales, trade receivables, ERHRAARETRE MRS EEY -
contract costs and certain cash and cash equivalent.
Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, NHEBEFERREENER  BTEE
certain accruals and other payables, contract liabilities, BREMENTIE  aHEE HEAE
lease liabilities and borrowings. KA o
Other segment information for the year ended 31 HE_ZT-_F+-A=1T—HILFEZ
December 2022 is as follows: Hih pFEROT
Property Property Property
development investment management Unallocated Total
S WERE NEER ROE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT  AREFT  ARETR  ARETT  AREFT
Other segment HippEpEH -
information:
Addition to non-current ~ FRFERB D PEE
segment assets NE
during the year 7,756 485 - 31 8,272
Reversal of expected UG BHEE
credit losses for trade ~ [IE%[E
receivables - 62 - - 62
Depreciation nE (4,215) - - (879) (5,094)
Fair value changeson ~ BEAMELTFEEE
investment properties - (49,445) = = (49,445)
Reversal of impairment ~ ZEFWERESE
loss of properties e
under development 45,456 - - - 45,456
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. Z2EERE)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 HE-_T-_—F+-A=+T—HIFEZ
December 2021 is as follows: Hih HFEROT
Property Property Property
development investment  management Unallocated Total
NEER MERE MEER v Fota
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ANRETFT ARETFT ARETFT
Other segment HihpEfEH -
information:
Addition to non-current  FRFEREHHBEE
segment assets NE
during the year 5,664 199 - - 5,863
Allowance for expected ~ [EMIRI Z BHEE
credit losses for trade & E
receivables - (107) - - (107)
Depreciation E (3,237) - - (105) (8,342)
Fair value changeson ~ HBEMENTFEE
investment properties - (12,040) - - (12,040)
Reversal of impairment ~ EESF Y EFELSR
loss of properties [
under development 12,000 - - - 12,000

There were four (2021:

of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31

nil) customers from property
development segment individually contributed over 10%

BE_Z-_—_Ft+-A=1T—HLEE"
mE(ZF-_—F: B)RABVEXERD

MEFPEHNHASEA RSN AREB

December 2022. 10% o
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKEFTT
Customer A ZEA 34,286 -
Customer B =FB 34,286 -
Customer C BFEC 33,333 -
Customer D ZFED 31,429 -

All the Group’s revenues from external customers is

derived from the Mainland China.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax asset) of the Group are divided into the
following geographical areas:

o EE R (@)
AEEZERHEE(FOEeRIAR
BLRIBEAE)D BATHE :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT AREFIT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note) BB (B (K73t) C -
Mainland China A B A 910,162 1,077,133
910,162 1,077,133

note: The place of domicile is determined based on the location
of central management.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or
the location of properties sold and/or leased out. The
geographical locations of the non-current assets and
interests of associate are based on the physical location
of the assets and location of operation of the associate
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

REVENUE 6. W=
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to REB s FEXEBEBRRZIHREVBR
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the RMEE o RERSEEB 2 W I A S
Group is the revenue from those activities. Set out below BEEERE - RERP,EHKEESHER
is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with Frig 2 s A BRE T AT -
customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Sales of properties HEYZ 253,557 316,584
Properties management fees MEETIEE 11,431 12,072
Revenue from contracts with customers REBFEAKRR(BEBHE
(within the scope of HKFRS 15) HEERF1SFHEER) 264,988 328,656
Gross rental income from investment WEMEZASIWALBEE
properties (outside the scope of HKFRS 15) (TEREEMBmEERSE
155REEA) 11,125 15,336
Total @t 276,113 343,992
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. W=
Transaction price allocated to the remaining BREEIBREZEFENTHNRERE
performance obligation for contracts with HNEE
customers
The transaction price in respect of outstanding contracts RZE_—FR T -_—F+=-_A=+—
with customers for the sales of properties as at 31 A RZAERFIIVHNARTHRAELM
December 2022 and 2021 allocated to the remaining 5 oREFBREHNET(RBEXIS
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially RKm ) B F 1B K i R U 2= 1Y) 78 HA B )
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and the IR XFR

expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HILEE
2022 2021
—E-C —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AEETFTT

Within one year —F R 768,814 874,262
For the sales of properties, the performance obligation is THEMEMNS - NYEZHIEEERA
satisfied upon the transfer of the control of the properties SEXRHBIMEEMENRER - F @
and the Group has fully received the consideration of the REAVEML - XHEFNAHSENER
properties sold. The expected timing of title transfer is WhsEF 5IEA -

stated in the sales and purchases agreements.

Leases HE
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=1+—-HILEE
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Rental income under operating leases: KEMEEETHESBA
Lease payments that are fixed BEETHENK 11,125 15,336
Total revenue arising from leases HEELE 2B WER 11,125 15,336
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUE T E U

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

OTHER REVENUE

VAN
2 N =]

7. Hiwzs

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Other revenue Hit s
Interest income on financial assets carried at ~ RE#EREAAFEZ S RMEEZ
amortised costs FEHA 6,079 3,743
Interest income on loan to an associate BT —HBEARERZFE
WA 17 973
Management fee income from an associate RE—EBEATZERE
WA 6 310
Others (note) H it (Hfat) 3,350 8,698
9,452 13,724
note: It represents certain one-off items including forfeiture of Kz ERREF—RMEEE  BEEE_-Z

customer’s deposit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

IR o

Tt A=T-RILEFERRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the

8.

year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —-—F = —#F+=-F=+—HIF/Z)

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 8. HEMBARZWE
On 29 December 2020, a subsidiary of the Company RZBE_ZEF+-_A=+hH  ARFK
entered into an agreement to dispose of one of the BRRG L — M HEALEMERRE DI
subsidiaries under the property development segment TH—HEHRBAR  BeREAARK
with a cash consideration of RMB297,706,000 and there 297,706,000t B HEWE AR - BB
was a balance receivable from the disposed subsidiary of HEMNBARENASBEEHRABARK
RMB42,878,000. They were fully received during the year 42,878,000T - HE-_ZE-_—F+ =1
ended 31 December 2021. 43%, 30% and 17% equity =+ —BLFE  ZEREE2EWE -
interest of the subsidiary was transferred to the buyer as ZMI B A RI43% -~ 30% M 17%HE D R
at 8 January 2021, 19 February 2021 and 22 September RZEBE-_—F—AN\A - ZBE=-—%=A
2021 respectively. The net assets of the disposed THhARZEZ—FhAZ+ZHEZET
subsidiary on 8 January 2021, which was the date of BH - RZEZ_—F—ANB(HEHH)
disposal, were as follows: HEMNBARMEEFEDT ¢
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash received: EWwBRE
Cash received from disposal RERENEE 297,706
Balance received from the disposed subsidiary REDHEWB AN RS 42,878
340,584
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KREEFENEEREBDF
control was lost:
Plant and equipment W E & 40
Properties under development BEPYE 589,731
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE -~ ke REMEWFRIE 13,186
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeFEY 4
Trade payables JFE A BR K (197,592)
Accruals and other payables (note) BT BB REAMENAFIEA L) (42,887)
Borrowings fBx (64,913)
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE 297,569
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB AR ZUWE :
Cash received BUIRE 297,706
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (297,569)
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interest of  Fff/E A A1 IFIE AR A 25 FE(R & & F{E
the subsidiary 28,686
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB ARz s 28,823
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFE
Cash received 2R e 340,584
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B HEZIRITESRNIRE (4)
340,580
note: The balance due to the Group of approximately Biat - FERAREBE B AR 42,878,000
RMB42,878,000 has been settled after disposal but before TERPERER-_ZE-_—4F+—A4

31 December 2021.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS

e MR

9. BEMAX

2022 2021
—E_-— —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
Interest on secured bank loans BERIBTERZHE 12,859 23,181
Interest on lease liabilities HEsBEZHE 430 105
Interest on other secured loans HEMBRERERZFE 32,607 41,782
Interest on contract liabilities GHBEEZFE 60,452 38,900
Less: amount capitalised to properties under &, : ENL AR EFRYEZ
development Gk (71,722) (61,696)
34,626 42,272
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRBLAT(ESHR), R A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFIT AREFT
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at BRETISTLAT(EE), R FIEH
after charging/(crediting): B (FHA)
Cost of properties sold BEMERAR 158,400 191,742
Cost of service for property management ) EERL T N 9,931 10,246
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected credit FEWEE S 2 FEEEE B
losses for trade receivables (BE),/ B (62) 107
Tax and other levies RIA R HnE & 6,510 5,226
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note (a)) W= RREITE (H1it(@) 3,339 1,751
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 1,755 1,591
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN &
- Audit services — Bt IR 732 705
— Non-audit services — T ARTS
— Interim review — RS 172 332
Reversal of impairment loss of properties under ZE #1352 R EE 1B D
development (45,456) (12,000)
Rental income from investment properties less &M ER LW AR BEER X
direct outgoings (note (b)) (K13 m)) (8,477) (12,406)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 10. BRELAT(EE), B8R @)

notes: Biat -
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) TERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB3,339,000 MERAZH ARES,339,000L(=F
(2021: approximately RMB1,751,000) have been included ——%F : HHAR®1,751,0007) EFFA
in administrative expenses. THER -
(b) Rental income from investment properties (b) REMERSWA
Direct outgoings incurred for rental income from investment KREMERSWAMELEEERYAOR
properties amounted to approximately RMB2,648,000 AR#2,648,000t(Z T =—F : AR
(2021: RMB2,930,000). #2,030,0007T) °
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 11. EERABAZ(BIEESHMH)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFTT
Wages and salaries Ié& e 21,958 23,699
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE KA — BB RETE 1,586 1,455
23,544 25,154
The PRC Operating Entities participate in defined FEEETRSEMAPEMAALERBT
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) BRI TR 1, TR AMEE (] 5
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial 2] Bt REEETRAIRB IR
government authorities, whereby the PRC Operating BT HE B8 Z S EE B VE T R 3K o b5 BUT
Entities are required to make contribution at the rates WEAB EENZ2BETEINENRE THENK
required by different local government authorities. The TERK - F*ETJ%*EU%EEJ?E{”E&#*”
local government authorities are responsible for the HEBEEEERxPRNRG -

pension obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Schemes.
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Under the PRC Schemes to which the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to make
contribution, forfeited contributions cannot be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions. For
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no forfeited contribution available to reduce existing level
of contributions payable in the future years.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately. For the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, there was no forfeited contribution available to
reduce existing level of contributions payable in the future
years.

11.

BERANMAX(BEESHMH)

(&)

RIBEREBERPEZENNEAREEDR
HEFHPBIEE - BETBEAD LM
TR AR BHEIOKTE - BEZFT ==

F_E-—F+_A=+—BHILFE I
2 WA SR AT R A R R R R T ER 7K
T2 K e

AEBNREE DB IELEEFTERD]
RIRBEBRERINBIZEEERERADN
BEEFE-—FERHIEAESHE([RES
FHEl)) o mEEFEA-HABIUZTEA
EEMERHUFRAREE - RIFRESE
3 BINHEBREAARESRBEA
HIE% &I - ZF AMEBKRALRE
30,0008 7T » WM&t 8I1F 1 2 R AN I 13
B o

AEERBRESFEELOHKTINER
B-B2—_FT_—_r_FT-_—F1+-A
=t HIEFE - WERWHERA UKD
RREERNBRBKFZHRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. ESMEREREEASEHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
12.1 Directors’ emoluments 121 EEME
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITESRBEYIENITES
directors:
2022 —E-_F
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
e 28 EBHT
EZhe RENFZ iR AR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERFR AEE TR ARRFR ARRFR ARKFR

Executive directors YTES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin ReELE - 2,979 - 16 2,995
Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEmAE - 558 - 47 605
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung BEELE 228 - - - 228
Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael E&E%4E 197 - - - 197
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong BRERE 197 - - - 197

622 3,537 - 63 4,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEMERESREEASHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (#8)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
12.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 121 EEME(H)
2021 T4
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits in Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
e EH TR
EEHe  REDAE Bt SIS it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEEFIT ANEEFIL ANEETT AEETFT
Executive directors ~ #{TE%
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin ReELE - 2,865 - 15 2,880
Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEREE - 554 - 44 598
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung BERLE 219 - - - 219
Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael E&Ex4E 189 - - - 189
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong RREEE 189 - - - 189
597 3,419 - 59 4,075

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2021: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were paid for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of the Independent Non-
executive Directors shown above were paid for
their services as Directors of the Company.

REENFAMBIELRERE
ERECAME 22 H(ZF=—

F:8\)-

EXFINATESTME - TER
BEREEARF NAEE N EH
TEHEIRIS M o EXFRFIRE
VIERTESHE - HAWEELE

ARREFEMIA ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (%&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
12.2 Five highest paid individuals 12.2

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2021: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 12.1.
The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2021: three) individuals during the year are as
follows:

TEEEFAL

AEBEARLRZSH

12. EEMERSNEBAEETMNH

ATBE=

Z(ZEZ—F:-WMEB)ESFT &
LM ERME1212®R 2O
WREE - FREMNBTMA(ZE
Z—F:=)ALZBEenT

2022 2021

—E-CF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥& -~ 2R EWHIZE 1,688 1,957
Retirement scheme contributions RIREET B 31 50
1,719 2,007

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

ZEWE BN THIAER -

Number of individuals

EEAH
2022 2021
—E-= T

Emolument bands B < 48 Bl
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AR¥1,000,001 L&

AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMBO0-RMB500,000 ARBOTLE

AR #500,0007T 1 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FTSHMAX

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Current tax BRERB 18
The PRC — Enterprise Income Tax R —EFTER
— Tax for the year —ARFEHIE 10,180 21,210
The PRC — Land Appreciation tax PR — - (AR
— Current year —KFE 38,481 43,597
— Over provision in respect of prior —BAFEBERE (M E)
years (note) - (34,010)
38,481 9,587
Deferred tax (Note 31) EEBE(H7231)
— (Credit)/charge for the year —AFEHER) T (10,877) 2,412
Total income tax expense FrSBiBX HE 37,784 33,209

note:

Before completion of deregistration of a dormant and
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary, Guangzhou Kinyang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a tax clearance was
obtained from the tax bureau. It upheld and confirmed
that a lower assessment rate of land appreciation tax
was applicable to the properties project rather than the
standard progressive rate (details please refer to Note 4(ii)
as provided by the Group previously. Therefore, an amount
of RMB34,010,000 for land appreciation tax was reversed
in year 2021.

Bt -

TR EHEEEOREZERNBRREIMN
EBENESREERARZA EARK
ERERSERER - ZEBEIHIER
ZYEIEEBERREN LML ERTE
ME - MIELAEBLAREMNZER
EBE(FFIEHELMME46) - Bt
R —FEOLHEERARE
34,010,0007T °
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4= N H

N =

13.

LR RS E Ik

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

13. IEHMAX @)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting TIAmM S MiE AR E e N < ¥
profit at applicable tax rates: B :
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (&E) i F (1,364) 197,239
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of 25% 1ZFRBIFTBRHER25%1E 2
TS % (341) 49,310
Tax effect of different taxation rates in other Hh B el =R TR E 2
tax jurisdictions Mg E 127 (256)
Over provision in prior years BAEFEHBERE - (34,010)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AP 2 BB & (374) (2,178)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRI S 2 I & 4,828 5,689
Tax effect of reversal of unrecognised BEARERUNBERER 2
deductible temporary differences Mg & (11,364) (3,000)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax FANFEABRTFEARERRIE
losses utilised this year EERIETE (560) (7,357)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERREATEEBEZ
recognised MG E 9,568 11,521
Tax effect of previously recognised allowable  JCATHER AT T E5 BB E 2
loss expired Mg E 936 6,608
Tax effect of share of result of an associate DE—HEEERRIEE L
B e 1,107 (32,428)
Tax effect of reversal of previously recognised B [@l 5C AT #ER AT 1T ETHE 2
allowable loss Uik 4,300 6,612
Tax effect of reversal of previously recognised 18] 4 i i 52 A] F058 & S 2= 2
deductible temporary difference 2GR 696 -
PRC land appreciation tax A B+ b SR E R 38,481 43,597
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax B IR ER v A (9,620) (10,899)
Income tax expense Frig i 37,784 33,209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2021: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

13.

EBRBAXZ @
—E-N\EZA-+—0B BEIZEE
BB E—tERBUET) (BLH) &
FIERYNTEFER]) - 3l AFIEH MK
Bl o EPIERN —_E—NF=A=1+N\H
BICERL R B TIE - FIEH RS
TOAAMRHGENEEERERE
B T 49 0% T $5128.25% K T KM - 43
B 7 TR RIS 12 16.5% BB R 4
B FEAMEHMASIEENEBRTE
Yo 4 S R 16.59% KO B — B K o

ARFRIEERBATHEHMBSIEE
BESREMBREPUTEKX - BEMNE
BT ARIR MR R 2 2 5t FE R B M3 12
16.5%MH KT E -

RNEBBPBE AN EBIEL 2 EHEE
TIRBEAFEEFERBER - ERAE
Bl 2EREMNER TIZB%(ZEZ—
F o 25%)FHEFTH -

H B+ IR ERAR R T (BB 2 18 & (B
HEMEMSHRERATINRASL (B1EL
WEREREERUALTEMERRES
IR 2ERH EI0%E60%( T = —F :
30%ZE60% ) UL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BR(EE) &R
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BEREXR(EE) BF
The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share is based B (E518),/ B TIREAR A AJE
on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company i 518 #9 A R # 39,148,000 T ( = &
of approximately RMB39,148,000 (2021: profit of Z— % E M H AR 164,030,000
approximately RMB164,030,000) and on the weighted L) RFABETEBRZINETH
average of 10,293,136,554 (2021: 10,293,136,554) £ 10,293,136,554 I ( = & — — F :
ordinary shares in issue during the year. 10,298,136,554% )5t & o
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SREE(EHE) BF
There was no difference between basic and diluted (loss)/ BHE_Z-_—_Fk=F=—F+=A
earnings per share as the Company did not have any =+ —HIEFE ARRR RS A E
dilutive potential shares outstanding during the year ended EBEITEINNEER D - SRERRESE
31 December 2022 and 2021. (BR)/BRITEER -
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWHE
2022 2021
—E-CH —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 585,960 598,000
Additions NE 485 -
Decrease in fair value NEER D (49,445) (12,040)
Transfer from completed properties BRI EREZE R IME
held for sale 15,700 -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—8 552,700 585,960

158 R EEBERA R 2022F F#




15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment
properties according to lease periods as at 31 December
were as follows:

,%?\/\ ﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬁi

BEWME®)
REWER+ - A=+ —BRASHIER
SEEAWHMT -

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBEINGS -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HEINT10E50%F 552,700 585,960

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were assessed by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.I.
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the Group’s senior management and officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for investment properties was arrived at
by considering the capitalised income derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
similar locations and conditions.

Majority investment properties of the Group are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in Note 36.

$%EZ&§%¥%:?——¢&:§
Z—F+ A=+ —HZRAFELE

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@gﬂﬁ@o
RIABRBFEERAR AT SIEMES
MK E - BETHE®RE  HERFRE
RAXREESHREERENARBREEILPR
BREYEEGEM AR - AL
RAEEOARBNITESER -

KREMEREDEZERAFHANEENER
LA R EEFWAE S (ER) 2
ERERAME KR TREDER ZEIRH
TISBEBEMHETT ©

REBRIADILENEIBRIFBLLEHER
MYE=FH BEFB2E—THEHR
M3E36 ©
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, investment properties of
approximately RMB506,000,000 (2021: RMB551,960,000)
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group to the extent of
RMB141,256,000 (2021: RMB157,256,000).

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy groups the
investment properties into three levels based on the
relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring
the fair value of the investment properties. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

15.

REWZE =)
RZEBE-—F+-_A=+—H #HAR
¥ 506,000,000 (Z B = —%F : AR
551,960,000 ) Wix EME D HF T R
17 RS ASE —HNB AR ERZ—
ARIRTTRLE A R#141,256,0000 (=
——%F : AR¥157,256,0007T) °

TREJNAEERBEAFERFNNEER
BARRKBAFEFEZREDE - RE
MERBHEZSREVMEATFEMAE
R AR Z YA SRR A FERR
D= o RHERRNBREATER

- S HREEZIEREMS®RE
(REEHE) -

- B BMAEREMENAI
BEBRMSWARE  LEXA
BEREBLERZ2BABE - B58
RZBWABBELENSEE &

- FZA WIENBEMEHSEE
REZEEWABE(BEIBREZ
wABE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.

The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in
the consolidated statements of financial position at each

BEWME®)
REREDS  AEBELGSBBRRE
NAFEFIEZZEMED ABUATATLE

reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FA -
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-& FH E=4 act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT ARETFT AR¥TFT AREFT
Investment properties REBEMNEE
located in Guangzhou,
the PRC
At 31 December 2022 MN-ZTE-—F
+=-ZA=+—H - - 552,700 552,700
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& F_H E=& st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETFT ARETT AREFT
Investment properties R BE MR B Y2
located in Guangzhou,
the PRC
At 31 December 2021 N —c
—~A=+—H - - 585,960 585,960
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. BREWx@®)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=MAFEFEEH

2022 —E-

Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable unobservable
techniques input Range inputs to fair value
BLBRY ELBRC W AHER

HERT WARE gE ATENEBR

Investment properties in -~ Market approach - Market rent RMB24-RMB203  The higher the market rent,

Guangzhou, the PRC
FRIEMNREYE

investment method

5% —REE

per square meter
BYRRARE24E
AR¥2037T
3.5%-7.3%

[iotiikn

Reversionary yield

B

the higher the value
mslels  ATELSS

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the value
ERRREZEE A TEBE

2021 —E-—4F
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable unobservable
techniques input Range inputs to fair value
BrERZ ELERC WA BER
HERD BABE gE DNFENBE
Investment properties in -~ Market approach - Market rent RMB69-RMB210  The higher the market rent,

Guangzhou, the PRC
FRIEMNREYE

investment method

5% —REE

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

per square meter
BYARARKEGITE
ARE2107T
4.5%-6.85%

[iikotikn

Reversionary yield

g

the higher the value
msels  ATELSS

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the value
ERREZEE A TEBE



15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these FA -
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

T

4= A
2 N =]

P RS E

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

15. REWE (&)
EoMAFESBER ()

E=RATEHEOEBEH

2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Investment properties located in Guangzhou,  RAEIEMNEIREWE -
the PRC:
At 1 January n—HA—H 585,960 598,000
Additions NE 485 -
Decrease in fair value NIFAE R D (49,445) (12,040)
Transfer from completed properties held ERERFELEZERIME
for sale 15,700 -
At 31 December R+—RA=+—H 552,700 585,960

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is

BREMENRAFERAERGABRREREM
EHBARRZ[REMEZ A FEES ]

recognised as “fair value changes on investment

properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. HWEKRKE

Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENE B #E
®E  RBAERE RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT ANEE T ANEETFT AEETFT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=—F—F—H 8,714 3,799 7,574 20,087
Exchange realignment AR (1) 4) - (5)
Additions NE - 400 199 599
At 31 December 2021 and R-F_—F+-A=1—H
1 January 2022 k-E-—%—-F—H 8,713 4,195 7,773 20,681
Exchange realignment B H iR 4 10 - 14
Additions NE - 31 7,756 7,787
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-—F+-A=+—H 8,717 4,236 15,529 28,482
Deduct: accumulated depreciation & : BT ER HEER
and impairment loss
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—f—H 7,472 2,828 5,265 15,565
Exchange realignment P 5 5 E (1) 4 - (5)
Depreciation e 309 269 1,173 1,751
At 31 December 2021 and AZEZ—F+ZA=1+-H
1 January 2022 kZZZZF-H—-H 7,780 3,093 6,438 17,311
Exchange realignment B AR 4 10 - 14
Depreciation e 309 464 2,566 3,339
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-fA=+—H 8,093 3,567 9,004 20,664
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_ZF+-A=+—H 624 669 6,525 7,818
At 31 December 2021 WZBZ-&5+ZA=+—H 933 1,102 1,335 3,370

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GRS YRy T E IS

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. ERAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWME
RMB’000
AREFIT

As at 31 December 2022 R=B==f+=B=+—H

Carrying amount (note (i) BREE (A aE) 3,509

As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-f+=B=+—H

Carrying amount (note (i) AREE(H52(0) 5,264

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-_—F+=-A=+—HILEFE

Depreciation charge WEXH (1,755)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-—HS+-A=+—HLEE

Depreciation charge e (1,591)

note: Htat -

0] No additions to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 0] REE_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILF
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: addition E-oEERAEEEREERAENAE
of RMB5,264,000). —E - —F B AR5,264,000

TT) e
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Expense relating to short-term leases EHERHEE s A 600 602
Total cash outflow for leases MEHReRLRE 2,541 2,543

The Group has obtained the right to use property as its
office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of three years from the end of

reporting period and without break-clause for early I8\ 7 FRETIE TR -

termination.

AEECEBHEEHZIUSEN A EBY
REREMAE - RFHE—RBAEVHR
RBERREFNL SR =FEAEIRTF
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—BBE QAR zER

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

Cost of investment adjusted for share of result  FLU B D15 — R EE 2 A A
of associate after acquisition HEEHWERAR 2 A% 347,025 483,452
Less: unrealised profit in associate B REE AR 2 RE IR E T (890) (913)
346,135 482,539

The following list contains the particulars of the associate
which is a private company:

TRENEMLERRIANEE R BIFFS

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRERLA
Held by a
subsidiary
Group’s of the
effective Held bythe ~ Company
Countryof  Paid-in interest ~ Company ADRZ  Principal activities and
Name registration  capital by | b O WEB2AE places of operations
8 EMER BERER ERER B8 BE IEXBREXLY
Guangzhou Xintian Properties  The PRC RMB710,503,607 30% 30%  Property development in the
Development Limited PRC
(note (i), (i), (i) & (iv))
BMFRBHERRERAR  HE ART710,508,6077T ReERENEER
()~ (i)~ (i) & (i)
notes: BaE -
0] The English name of the associate referred in these i) AR EAMKATRzEX R - HE

consolidated financial statements represent management’s
best effort in translation of the Chinese name of the
associate as no English name has been registered or
available.

(i) The statutory financial statements of the associate are not
audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

(i) The associate is registered as limited company under the
PRC law.
(iv) Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited is

operating in the PRC and is a strategic partner for the
Group in developing the property development business.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

A BT IAR TR 2 B N R 2 R
ARAERERNERFERARZIT XA
TR 1E 2 BEXXBRE -

XH N R) 2 VA TE B T AR A 3E e BB
BETEVEBIAR A BIETTERX -

EMNFRESERRARA TN @
B oAREEENEREEBOBRS
PEBE o



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N b El

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  18. R—EBE QAT 2% @)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BRABE RN CMBENBREERTIOT -
associate is set out below. The summarised financial NTHBERBMEZRIBEE SV HREE
information below represents amounts shown in the AlRE s B RN al M mE AT &
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance B
with HKFRSs:
Guangzhou Xintian
Properties
Development Limited
EMNFREHERRE
BRATR
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Current assets (note) MEVEE (K1) 1,281,703 2,401,166
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,132 518
Current liabilities DEE=RET 189,749 855,069
Non-current liabilities EMBEE 955 -
Equity R 1,093,131 1,546,615
Revenue g 11,465 1,171,741
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE) aF (13,484) 505,552
Other comprehensive income H2EKA - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2mE(ER) MWARE (13,484) 505,552
Dividend income from the associate KB E R AR AR BWA 132,000 -
Reconcile to the Group’s interests in the BEAREBEAEHE NTER
associate R
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate ~ Et& /R a/F & E4E5E 1,093,131 1,546,615
Group's effective interest REBERER 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEEDEHE AT EEFE 327,939 463,983
Goodwill BES 3,828 3,828
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition U B&ERF A (B B i) 52 28 15,258 15,641
Less: unrealised profit in associate B R E R R 2 REIR R (890) (913)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4r& MR ERNEEE
statements 346,135 482,539

note: As at 31 December 2022, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB203,943,000
(2021: RMB208,867,000), stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policy.

Wit WS- —F+-A=+—H HEQ
AIMBFIEFLHEZERIMEARARE
203,943,000 (Z T =—F : ARM
208,867,0007T) * LB AEEMN S
AT - BUKAMAFIRHERE 2
BIRE AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra R M

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R—REIEZE AT Z2EH (8

Reconciliation of share of result of an associate is D —HBE AR EECHERREEN
disclosed below: T
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE),#H (13,484) 505,552
Group’s effective interest REBEER#ER 30% 30%
Group’s share of (loss)/profit before fair value  BRUCBER A P EABRNTE

adjustments at acquisition REED L (EE), = F) (4,044) 151,665
Change in effect of fair value adjustments at WA P ERAETENE

acquisition (383) (21,955)
Group’s share of (loss)/profit REBE DL (EER) & F (4,427) 129,710

168 HRWESREERD R 2022F F#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

19. BEPYE

2022 2021
—=E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRT ARETT

Properties under development

All properties under development are located in the PRC.
Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2022, no properties under
development (2021: RMB184,727,000) were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s borrowings granted to the
Group. Under the facility agreements, the sales proceeds
of the properties were required to repay the related
borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, properties
under development with an amount of RMB1,852,637,000
(2021: RMB44,336,000) were transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Amounts of properties under development expected
to be recovered within one year from the end of the
reporting period is approximately RMB86,629,000 (2021:
RMB596,950,000) and those after one year from the end
of reporting period is approximately RMB436,425,000
(2021: RMB1,406,839,000).

As at 31 December 2022, certain properties under
development were close to completion, the net realisable
value of those properties under development was
found to be higher than their carrying amount (net
of impairment made in previous years). Therefore, a
reversal of impairment loss of RMB45,456,000 (2021:
RMB12,000,000) were recorded for properties under
development and included in reversal of impairment
loss of properties under development on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BRTYE

523,054 2,003,789

PIBERRETYVEDURTE - FHELME
PR BBE40%F -

R-ZTE-—_F#+-F=+—8  #@#&(=
T —F: AR¥184,727,0007T) B &
P EEEIEARN S BERER 2 ER
m o RIERERZE  WENLEMERIE
BEEMBBEER -

BHE_Z-__F+-_A=+—BI1LFE -
© A ARE1,852,637,0000(=F=—
F: ANR#44,336,0007T) W E R W
PEBPEREEECERIME -

BERPYFTEHNRERARET —FALRK
O£ 54 A R%86,629,000L( T = —
£ AR#596,950,0007T) @ REREHF®
REF—F R E A A K8 436,425,0007T
—ET=-—%F : AR¥1,406,839,0007T) °

RZE-_=—F+=—A=+—H BTEE
RYECEITT RAMERZEEREPR
MEN]ZRFELHEEERES (kX
FEHROFE) - Bt - FRPWESRS
B 1B R B A R #45,456,000L( =%
——4% : AR¥12,000,0007T0) WRERE
BRREOLEEPDEREEERD S
HIHR ©
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

20.

21.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR

20. FEHEZECRIYE

SALE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Completed properties held for sale, at cost BEREZERIME -
B 2,352,041 673,460

The completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2022, completed properties held

FEREZCRIMEOURTE - FF
T ibfEMENEIBEBA0F -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H &8BAA

for sale with an amount of RMB428,574,000 (2021: R#428,574,000(Z T = —F : AR

RMB359,166,000) were pledged as collateral for the
borrowings granted to the Group. Under the facility

#5359,166,000 ) FIFIEHE 2B R T Y
%ET&TW’E#’M—"E B ERRITE R Z T

agreements, the sales proceeds of the properties were c REBEMEHE - WENDEMSEHRIA

required to repay the related borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the completed
properties held for sale with an amount of RMB15,700,000

were transferred to investment properties.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

/,\151%7@ BAfE K -

HE_Z_—_F+_A=+—HILFE -
S H A AREA15,700,000 TR EFEHE 2

ERTYECEBEREME -

21. FEWERR

2022 2021

—E=-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT ARETFIT

Trade receivables JE I BR 3R

— from property investment —REMEERE 2,784 4,957
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TEHEEEIERE (175) (276)
Trade receivables — net JEMER T — F1E 2,609 4,681

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EBWERR @
The directors of the Company considered that the fair ARREERAEERWER 2 AFEEER
value of trade receivables are not materially different from HEVEEAEZE  JTHRAKEREZS
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short FIBH R AR -
maturity periods in their inspection.
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, trade RZE_—_F+_A=+—Ak=F=—
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from F+-—A=+—H EBREFREEREER
investment properties. Proceeds are to be received in BEWMEHRSWA - AERIERBEEREE
accordance with the terms of related tenancy agreements. Th e B I FRURER -
Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables EWERZTBREEBE BEFERAER
are recorded using allowance accounts on trade Rz BERTE - FFBIT ¢
receivable is as follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
At the beginning of the year F7) 276 325
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected credit ERREREEBEZ
loss recognised (BE@), B (62) 107
Less: uncollectible amounts written off B B 2 ATk 5k08 (39) (156)
At the end of the year FR 175 276

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of expected credit loss on both
an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s trade receivables of approximately
RMB39,000 (2021: RMB156,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the management assessed that the
receivables were not expected to be recovered.

REBMP S RE BHIRER R BEEER
AEBERRS L REREEBRRERE
B -RZE-__F+=_A=+—H8 " &
EERENEERTEBERNARYE
39,0007 (=F=—4 : AKM 156,000
TL) RIERAE o 18 B B /Y A8 UK AR 3K B B
BR#SNEFARE  EEEFERAZE
FEW R Z R A AT el [a] o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance
for expected credit losses is as follows:

PEWBRFR (&)

R TEHME & B IR B 10 B KBRS IR A8 8
A BR R REDITOT -

2022 2021

—E-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT AREFIT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 2,609 4,681

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s trade
receivables past due (2021: included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB37,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date). Out of the past due balances, none of the
balance has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default. These balances were related to
a large number of diversified customers that had a good
track record of credit with the Group.

The Group is holding rental deposits from tenants as
collateral in respect of trade receivables for rental income.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, all of the Group’s
trade receivables are denominated in RMB, no interest is
charged on trade receivables.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

HREFEREANAEEBE  BitES
EERBER -

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H KA&EEE
WIERMEAR( T - —F : AEBEE
WEE R AR B IERESEAARK37,000
THEE RBREBHEEE) - RE®
MR - BELAS D@0 L
£ BTHEGRERY - ZSEBERET
AEREFER  ZERPIRAEEZB
FIEELSERLT -

AEELHRBESRAZEBKRERFTARE
HPNHERSEAEMRM

KRB FR_FE-_—_F+-_A=+—
B NEBMAERBBERSUARES
8 W& EUWERFRUERF) 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND EARE  ReREMEKER
OTHER RECEIVABLES =
2022 2021
—E-CH —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Prepaid value-added tax TEHIEET 49,295 59,969
Prepaid withholding tax recoverable (note (a))  F&fI A UK RIFEFNFL (4772 (a)) - 9,001
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ E B EUBRFL « A B &
(note (b)) ®e(Hitmb) 84,542 135,957
133,837 204,927
Less: Non-current portion B SERNEREE (354) (6,229)
Current portion BIHAES 5> 133,483 198,698

All of the current portion prepayments, deposits and other

receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

notes:

(@

The amount represented the prepaid withholding tax of
deregistration of an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary,
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
upon the re-investment made to a new company registered
in the PRC, the amount prepaid would refund to the Group
which agreed with the tax bureau. During the year 2022,
the prepaid withholding tax was fully refunded.

[t mainly includes prepaid construction cost, residences
maintenance fund, rental and sundry deposits. As at 31
December 2022, advance receipts from customers for the
sale of properties under development of approximately
RMB69,565,000 (2021: RMB113,596,000) were placed
in Xuzhou Real Estate Management Service Center, a
PRC local government authority, for security purpose.
The Group can request for withdrawal of the balances
in accordance to agreed procedures for the payment of
construction cost.

PRERVRE Y MR - ke MEMEK
RREHE —FAkE -

(@)

ZRBERMEZENBRREMESRE
WEFERAR AR ARG EZMOHD
AT HIRER AN THBEING - &
HBRBRWHE  BNOFOEFREER
SE - RN-T-—F  BNEAHER
HURE -

TERBEBEBNBEAE FEHEBE
& Hek@EEES RZTZ=ZF
+ZA=+—8 HEESHEFTWES
B P WELE KA A R ¥ 69,565,000 7T
(ZZ=—% : AR¥113,596,0007T)
EFEABRMNEEERRE SO (P Hi
FHRFEHPERBESZA - REET
REBEXFERERAZ BERFERER
REHBE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra R M

23. CONTRACT COSTS 23. SH KA

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT

Incremental costs to obtain contracts (note) B E LR IRIE R A (1 5F) - 700
note:  Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2021 relate Fiit: MZE-_—F+-_A=+—HEEX
to the incremental sales commissions paid to employees MAE KRR EMEES REEREIHIE
and selling agents. EHERSHER -
24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 24, BAFEFABENERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL: EERATEFAEENEMEE ¢
2022 2021

—E-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT ARETFT

Financial asset at FVTPL (note (a)) BRATEFABENEREE
(Kiit(a)) - 7,920
note: Wizt -

(@) The financial asset at FVTPL under level 3 fair value (a) NE=ZHRATFEAENIZATETFAE
measurement represents the expected value from the mNEpEERRESEWBAREMN
winding up of an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, wHeKEERZEBRAR([£K])
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real Estate Development (—RRFEFMOBERAR)ERER
Limited (“Caming”), a limited liability company registered in JEHAEE -
the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

In 2021, the Group lodged an application to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province (the “Court”) for the voluntarily wind
up of Caming. With effect from 9 December 2021, being
the date of appointment of liquidators by the Court, the
Group lost control over Caming. As at this date, Caming
had cash equivalent of RMB3,000 and other payable in the
amount of RMB724,000. As at 31 December 2021, the
liquidation was still in progress. The carrying value of the
financial asset of RMB7,920,000 was determined by the
Directors based on the discounted expected net proceed
from the result of liquidation of Caming. It composed
of the expected gross cash inflow from sales of the
fully impaired inventories held by Caming, the expected
liquidation expenses and levy, and expected total taxation
for the liquidation of RMB32,708,000, RMB5,326,000 and
RMB19,462,000, respectively.

Upon the lost of control over the subsidiary, the net
liabilities of RMB721,000 was derecognised and a financial
asset at FVTPL of RMB7,920,000 was recognised. A gain
of approximately RMB8,641,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021. Net cash
outflow from winding up the subsidiary was recorded as
cash flows from investing activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the liquidation
was in progress and certain proceed from liquidation of
RMB11,214,000 received during the year. The directors
of the Company expect the liquidation to be completed in
2023.

24.

BAVEFABRENERMEE
)

(4

it

RZTZ—F AEBERMEREEMT
FRARZER(ER ] REEREES
eB-F-—F+-ANBBRERZ
EERAZB)BENR AEEBLEES
BREIRSIHE - NiZB - SR MERSSE
A R #53,0007T I H b & 45 5RI8 A R ¥
724000 c NZE-—F+-_A=+—
A BRNEETF SHREEMNKREEAE
AR¥E7,920,0007L Ty R E FIRIBE S KB
BERMAUREHMESHRBFEET - £
HEEEXFENTRERETENTEL
WEeMALEE - BEBRAIREBERE
SHEBRIBRAEMANK  DRABARE
32,708,0007T * A R #¥5,326,0007T & A
R#19,462,0007T °

RERELHMB AR ZIEHIER - 8EFEFE
ANRHET721,000 T2 IETER - IR FEEF
AEHE SR EE ARM7,920,0007T 1
RoBEFT-_—F+ZHA=1T—HLHF
& W AR 8,641,0007T A 18 25 7
R BEMBARZRE&R L FERGE
RemERTHAREEB 2RERE -

RIREEAKRE  BEEAEETPRAFE
WEERFBHREAEARE11,214,0007T °
AABEFEHERER T -_=ZF%
D4

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

24,

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 24, BAVFEFABENERERE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TREIREBRBE R FERNREGE

measured at fair value in the consolidated statements BARREFEZ AT EFECEREE - @b

of financial position in accordance with the fair value EEREBHEZSSREEATEMAE

hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy groups the financial RN AR 2 B A EREE AT ELR
assets into three levels based on the relative reliability of DEZH o RFEHFBEATIH
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of the

financial assets. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - F— o BREEZERTISHRE
markets for identical assets; (CREEAE) -

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included - FR FRABIEREAING
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, EEBRMEHARE  TEFH
and not using significant unobservable inputs. BAEZEER 2HABUR - BAE
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market RIZBABBRITEMSEE &
data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on - B WIFLABREFAIG T I5 EUE
observable market data (unobservable inputs). BEZEEH ABE(EBLIER 2

BASE)

The Group’s financial assets stated at fair value in the REWEBRH - AEETHRE VBRI E

consolidated statements of financial position at each WAFEIERZEHEES AATAFEE

reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FH -

follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE— E-H E= HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFTABZRD
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+=ZA=+—H - - 7,920 7,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 24.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (&)

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements
2021

Valuation techniques

fHERD

Unobservable input

BEREZBAYE

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)
BEAFESTABENEREE

FE=WMAFEFEEHR

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BEABRZBAMERLTENBR

Financial asset at FVTPL
method

BAFEFARENERHEE BRRSREA

Discounted cash flow

Discount rate: 10.5%

BRIRE : 10.5%

The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

BREMS  QATEYE -

The movements during the year in the balance of these FAN - B=ZRATEAENERZFHN
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: ™
2022 2021
—E-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
At 1 January n—A—H 7,920 -
Recognition of financial assets at FVTPL WRE A ET AEEN
TREE - 7,920
Fair value change N EEE 3,294 -
Proceeds from financial asset RS ESHIE (11,214) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 7,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposit include
the following components:

RERASSEWURTIEA
Be
BeRASEBNURELIFES BIEN
TR -

2022 2021

—E-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT AREFIT

Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFEEIR S 76,860 222,250
Pledged deposit for borrowing REBEFRHERFLES - 3,386
76,860 225,636

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately RMB76,611,000 (2021: approximately
RMB220,662,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB3,386,000 of pledged
deposit for borrowing is classified as current asset as the
corresponding loan is classified as current liability based
on the loan terms.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.35% to 0.625% (2021: 0.15% to 0.4%) per
annum. As at 31 December 2021, the pledged deposits
carry interest at market rate of 0.35% per annum. The
pledged deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant borrowings from financial institution.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

REERTEACEHBBETRNPEE
AIRITAANRE (T AR D) FHEZHIBL
AR#76,611,000(ZF=—4F : HHA
R #220,662,0007T) - AR BT EH
Rz B o BT B HMNEE B IEF R4
- SEMCESEHRT  ASEETS
BEEREAETINEREB 2 RITEARKE
HIRBINE -

RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H  AESE
FHeEFZeH ARMS,386,0007T 5
HEARBEE  JHAREEEFIREFNIE
HAEARBEE -

IRITHEBRUTEN R R - FRENT
0.35%£0.625%( = =~ —4%F : 0.156% &
04%) MZ_E-_—F+=-A=+—8"
BRIFIZ SR FFR0.35% M IHFI R
B BEFZRESER RS mEELESHEA
B R IR ARBR KR o
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

TRADE PAYABLES 26. FEERM
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the MERERENENERIIZERA ZERR
trade payables for construction from property development DHIAT -
were as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 515,064 454,261
91 to 180 days 912180H 938 929
Over 180 days BiE180H 2,577 859
518,579 456,049
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within FT B AR RTEE R —FENAB AR
one year or are repayable on demand. The trade payables EXREEE BNEFX—REHEAR
are normally due immediately from the date of billing. BB R EAS A o
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EtERARHEMENRIE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFIT AREFT
Rental received in advance from tenants and ~ FAFFENM 2 HE M EMIZS
other deposits 7,963 11,483
Tax and other levies RIER A E 1,662 1,157
Amount due to an associate (Note 40(b)) JES — B2 A R FIE
(KtiE40b)) 40,422 112,173
Amount due to a director of the Company JERAR AR —RESZHIA
(Note 40(b)) (B1740(b)) 4,676 1,533
Amount due to a former subsidiary under ERNEREF TRIMEB A A
winding up process ZFIE - 2,050
Other payables and accruals (note) Hub et 5B R ERT B R
(K1:%) 46,261 29,728
100,984 158,124

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

note: It included the accrued compensation for delay delivery
of RMB25,539,000 (2021: RMB14,778,000), accrued
salaries, administrative expenses, finance costs and sundry
creditors.

P FERT B A K E A e RIRTE RS 1 —
FRBBRANERREER -

Kit: EBRREREMEEINEESARE
25,539,000 (=T =-—F : AR¥
14,778,0007T ) * JEET ¥ & - 17
¥ BMERARFEBEMNTUE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEE
2022 2021
—E=-= T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Receipt in advance from customers EPENR(BEMEEE
in respect of property development oE8) — BIEAER &

segment — current portion

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group’s normal operating cycle and the whole
balances are classified as current.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions of
receipt in advance from customers and interest expenses
in respect of property development segment amounted
to RMB67,669,000 (2021: RMB430,771,000) and
RMB60,452,000 (2021: RMB38,900,000), respectively.

The revenue recognised in the current year in respect of
contract liabilities brought forward was RMB176,972,000
(2021: RMB173,284,000).

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

765,802 814,653

FIBARNBERMNAREAEZEERD
KB REMERE Y BARAE -

BE-_ZT-—F+-A=+—BIEE
WEMEZERE>HNEP AN KL E
F > 5 Bl a0 A R % 67,669,000 7T ( =
T —44: AR¥430,771,0007T) & A
R¥60,452,000L(—ZE=-—F : AR
38,900,0007T) °

MARAENEBERAFERRZWZEAA
R#176,972,0000(ZFE=—F : ARK
173,284,0007T) °



28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GRS YRy T E IS

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

28. EHE/JE®)

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

Movements in contract liabilities EHEERD
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Balance at 1 January —A—H#&&% 814,653 518,266
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of BHBREHENERADEA
recognising revenue during the year that BHBENARFEREREM
was included in the contract liabilities at the Do
beginning of the period (176,972) (173,284)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of BHBEHRNEEY) EIHE
receiving sales deposit related to sales of BRANHE RS MM
properties 67,669 430,771
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of SHEBEHREFERNFFE
accruing interest expense on advances S Mg hn 60,452 38,900
Balance at 31 December TZA=+—R#&R 765,802 814,653

The Group normally receives 2%-59% (2021: 1%-37%) of
the contract value as deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. This advance
payment are recognised as a contract liabilities until the
properties are completed and legally assigned to the
customer. The rest of the consideration is typically paid
when legal assignment is completed.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contains significant financial component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money take into consideration
the credit characteristic of the relevant group entities. As
this accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities
during the period of construction, it increases the amount
of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

ERITEEHRER  AEE—RAOTPK
MEXNBEN2%EI%(ZT_—F 1%
EI7TR)EREE - WBANFRERREH
BE EEVERIVKEIERTER -
RIS E - RETBEAEERE AT

BN - AREBER BN KT ERIEEKRN
CRMERID  ZRIEEEBNEER
B g EeRAENTERERES
B o AL FERTRUIBIE A EEEE AR
EHBEELRE  MNBREERIMENT
HIETEPRMERNN S S EITE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEAE
2022 2021
—E-= T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT
Lease liabilities payable: EFfHEEEE
Within one year —F R 1,729 1,511
Within a period of more than one year but BR—FETHBBAMT 2
not more than two years HABR A 2,024 3,753
3,753 5,264
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B RREBAEEE TR
months shown under current liabilities +ZEARIEBEE 2
FKIE (1,729) (1,511)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIERBBFE TR
shown under non-current liabilities T EABEEALEE 2 A 2,024 3,753
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied FEARHEE B ENME TS ERFIEX
to lease liabilities is 11% (2021: 11%). BlI1%(ZE=—F 11%) °

182 FRMESEEBR AT 2022F Fi#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

30. BORROWINGS

30. f&R

2022 2021
—=E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Borrowings included in: SFANTEIEZER
Secured bank loans repayable (note (a)) JEEE 2 BIEMRITER
(Hiit@)
— Within 1 year ——FR 14,960 133,176
— After 1 year but within 2 years ——FEERFRA 16,720 14,960
— After 2 years but within 5 years —MFERERFA 60,720 55,440
— After 5 years —hF® 48,856 73,656
Other secured loans repayable (note (b)) JEfEE 2 B A EBER
(Hiat b))
— Within 1 year ——FR 76,400 135,500
— After 1 year but within 2 years ——FEERFRA 52,800 -
— After 2 years but within 5 years —MFERERFA 168,000 150,000
Total interest-bearing borrowings FHEERAREE 438,456 562,732
Less: Amount due within one year shown B RNREBEE TR
under current liabilities —FREIHZ 8 (91,360) (268,676)
347,096 294,056
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s RIE - —FR-_E-_—F+_-_A=+—

borrowings were all denominated in RMB.

B AEEEFTHUAAREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

30. BORROWINGS (continued)

notes:

(@)

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which are
repayable within 1 year to 8 years (2021: 1 year to 9 years)
and bearing interest at the People’s Bank of China 5 years
loan base interest rate plus 0.55% inflated rate (2021:
110.6% multiply by the People’s Bank of China 5 years
loan base interest or plus 0.55% inflated rate). Interest is
repriced annually.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rates (which
are also equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank loans are 5% (2021: 5.2% to 10%) and secured
by investment properties and completed properties
held for sale (2021: secured by investment properties
and completed properties held for sale). Furthermore
bank borrowing amounting to RMB141,256,000 (2021:
RMB277,232,000) was also secured by personal guarantee
from a director, who is also a major shareholder of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other secured borrowings of RMB18,400,000
and RMB278,800,000 (2021: RMB135,500,000 and
RMB150,000,000) are fixed at 10.5% and 11.8%
respectively (2021: 10.5% and 11.8% respectively). As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the borrowings were
secured by completed properties held for sale and equity
interest of Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co.
Ltd., Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co. Ltd.
and Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties Development
Limited, personal guarantee by a director of the Company,
corporate and personal guarantee provided by parties
connected with the aforementioned director, whereas
properties under development and pledged deposit were
also secured the borrowing as at 31 December 2021.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#

30.

CENE )

At -

(@

NEBMBERFBRITEN AR —F2
NF(ZTZ—F: —ihi) &
KigR B ARRT ﬁi%ﬁm EF =
Mno.55% 2 FBME(ZT=_—F : 1%
#Aﬁﬁiffﬂiéﬁgzﬁﬁwiu
110.6%3k IN0.55% 2 /Z B F| K51 B ) 5
B FEEFET -

RZTEZZF+=_A=+—H FH#
AEBBROTERZERFE(HBAER
AHFNE) AE%(ZE=—4F : 52%%
10%) WA B ERFIEEHE 2B %
TITYEEBRB(ZZE=—F : UEBEY
ERBELE2ERTYEEER) -
gEah -+ ER1TfE KA R #141,256,0007T
(ZZT=—% : AR®277,232,0007T)
NE—REF(NAARRNEERR)
ZABAFEARVEIESR o

RZZZZF+ZA=+—H  BEX
SEHEAD B ERERARE 18,400,000
TR AR 278,800,000 (=& = —
£ AR #135,500,0007T & AR

150,000, oooﬁ)Z%l‘” JT“EUIEJ%
10.5% K118%(ZF=—% : HHlR
10.5% % 11.8%) ° EA_E::@SZ_ E
:_fﬁ‘f':ﬁ E+_E 1EI W\)—Hf\/{?%ﬂg

HEZDRTYERFMNEB DR ER
BIRAR - HHUERERER QA
LEMNTEBEFHERZARAR] - K
NREEEZEAER HEREEEMH
gz NEREZ AR REARER - M
EBHOERCERRENTRN _T——%F
T A=+ — BEEIRARSER -



31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N b El

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

DEFERRED TAX 31. EELEHIE
The Group has total unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong REBBEREEBRFEH RERTIBE
Kong and the PRC of approximately RMB232,646,000 BAEHAHARME232,646,000L(ZF=—
(2021: approximately RMB231,568,000). Regarding &F Y ARKE231,568,0007T) ° BHREFY
the accumulated impairment loss of properties under ¥NBEREZERTIMERTREFSE
development and completed properties held for sale, an Bz ANR#278,544,0000( =& =~ —
amount of RMB278,544,000 (2021: impairment loss of F - RERE AR®324,000,0007T) #F
RMB324,000,000) was subject to the agreement with the AR ERZR  JHREREZSER
relevant tax authorities, that are available for offsetting NA)ZARRFERT & F o BRIFHPBIDZEFT
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the BEE  ZEMEBETAEESAF -
losses arose. Under the EIT Law of PRC, the tax losses i 5 52 5 I B A 8] R Be T8 ORI R a7 /9 2=
could be carried forward for a maximum of five years. ALV IEZEE - BT esn e BEEERER
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of FERIEEE -
these losses which arose in subsidiaries with unpredictability
of future profit streams to absorb such losses.
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary WEMB AR R RAFEEE R =5
differences associated with the undistributed earnings ZIEERBBEIELREE - L ARASE
of subsidiaries have not been provided as the Group is B mirtZE 2o BRRENMEZES
in a position to control the timing of reversal of these BRARKEREAGETIEED RN T
differences and it is probable that such differences will —ZF+ZA=+—8  AEEHBERAF
not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December MEF 4 EANREET,541,247,0000(=F
2022, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are ——F : HARK1,272,305,0007T) °
approximately RMB1,541,247,000 (2021: approximately
RMB1,272,305,000).
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when W F R FIHORFRATRE T A5 BN HA T 18 8 = B
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets BVERTRIE B EE AR - MREMEHP
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income RA—WS#E  AREEFRENREEREA
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The analysis of the B T AR o BB 75 HmE B M EIRER
deferred tax balances for financial reporting purpose is as HESRNDITWOT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Deferred tax asset RETRIBE B (1,116) (7,047)
Deferred tax liability BEREIBEE 160,175 176,962
159,059 169,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (&

31.

2 E =

Ft—A=1—HILFE)

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. ELEBIE )
The net movements on deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) BEHEEE(BE)ZFEBWT -
are as follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Accelerated Unrealised ~ Revaluation arising from
tax  Impairment contract of investment  acquisition of
depreciation of assets costs properties  subsidiaries Tax losses Total
RUENE
AER AAfEEZ
MEE L E BENE AHRA  EHREME  AYERE HEER Eh)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ANEEFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETI
Asat 1 January 2021 R_E_—F-A-H 31,967 (696) 589 59,802 95,429 (19,671) 167,510
Exchange realignment ExaE m - - - - - "
Deferred tax charged/(credited) £M#1% / (3t A)
tothe profitor loss during & ZELEHE
the year 4,068 - (#14) (2,935) (11,527) 13,220 2,412
Asat31 December 2021  RZE-—&
TZA=1-H 36,018 (696) 175 56,367 83,902 (6,351) 169,915
Exchange realignment B AE 2 - - - - - 2
Deferred tax charged/(credited) £7M#1% / (3t A)
totheprofitor lossduring ~~ EEZELRHA
the year 3,869 696 (175) (12,136) (8,366) 5235 (10,877)
Asat31 December2022  RZE--F
t-A=1-H 39,908 - - 44,731 75,536 (1,116) 159,059
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from 20 May 2013 unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the company or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

32.

BREE

RZT—=FRA=+H  ARFRKE
P st &) ([ %at8)) - 5 EAE K ER
RAKBEZRINEFFLERZAERSZ
B - ZrtE 2B BEB2RERREART
EX(BENT  FRTHBIIFRTE
B) AKEEEMES AKEERAMR
BHER  AKEEP  ARRBEERREA
REM B AR EAIFERARR - RIERTT
BHER] - ZEER_F—=F51A
—tREFTEFERAR

B R R IR % 5T BI AR 2 R R TT R RE A
A (RBREETER)RZTEEBA
BIPMEAAI B R 2 B ITAD 2 10% ° IMEF
T-EAHEA  RZTE&AER2HE
ERHBREBETA TRITZRNEE
RETEBBARA R ERERDHTR
NZ1% o EfELRB BN LB
B BN IR RS LB IR LA -

AR BEME & B RENE AR T -
AEBBELIRAIREEAENREEL
AR FERE - MARRES - THEHR
FEZRAAESEMHEALELER
R E I IFNITEETFLE - 1o
PEA+ @A SEARARREZRE
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RO T AERENRE AR R R T
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ARBIRMHARBRLEER ZEBRTE)BR
5,000,000 7T - BIZEE SRR A g
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the Scheme at any
time during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date
when the option is granted and expiring on the last date of
such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there is
no option granted and outstanding under the Scheme.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA
Number of
shares Amount
KRG #E ]
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each: &M HEE0.004% L2 Ti@Ak -
At 1 January 2021, R-ZE—_—F—H—H"
31 December 2021, —EZ—F+ZH
1 January 2022 and =+-HH —Z2-_—
31 December 2022 —A—HBHEk=_ZF_—
+=—A=+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
shares Amount Equivalent to
ROEE X HER
HK$’000 RMB’000
FET AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 & &RE{E0.004/57T,2
each: TR
At 1 January 2021, WZE-_—%—H—H"
31 December 2021, —E-—F+=A
1 January 2022 and =t+—H8 ==
31 December 2022 —A—BRZZT==F
+=—A=+—H 10,293,136,554 41,173 37,628
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

34.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein during the year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

U

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The capital redemption reserve of the Group
represents the normal value of the share capital of
the Company repurchased and cancelled.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

- the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

- the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

34. @BE®

34. RESERVES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve

The fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at the end of each
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to allocate 10%
of the companies’ net profits to the statutory
reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of
the companies’ registered capitals. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses,
if any, or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EWERRE

X REEeRERE I EETB
WEAMEEZFABENERE ° %
BRI 2 SR BUREE -

BAVEFARMEZE B AR
]
BAFEFAERBZARAFEE
EREREHRNEMEEZ AT
BERFTEEFERE - WREK T2
(SRR ERIE ©

EERE
FERARBRERAGFEMNZ10%E
EEREES  HEZESEER
RAIFEMERZ50% o A8 R ET It
A RERBES K Rt
B8 (E ) FHE N AR EMER
HEBES &L BERN QB EM
BEARZ25% o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAREIE

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT

Capital commitments (contracted but not BARFAE(DTRERRESE)
provided for):
Capital injection into an associate m—HEEAREE 26,249 26,249
Construction costs of properties under R AP REM AR
development 62,583 185,730

88,832 211,979

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. REMEERH

As Lessor fEREHBEA

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the total future minimum RIEZ—_FhN_E_—F+_A=1+—
lease receivable by the Group under non-cancellable B AEERBAAIBHEHSEHERIRE
operating leases in respect of investment properties are as VZEREW s BESEEEFIBRBOT :
follows:

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT

Within one year —&FR 1,157 1,837
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

37. LOAN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loan facilities
including bank loans and loans from financial institution.

Loan facilities from banks amounted RMB141,256,000
(2021: RMB277,232,000) were fully utilised at the end
of 2022. It was secured by the Group’s investment
properties, completed properties held for sale and
personal guarantee from a director (2021: secured by the
Group’s investment properties, completed properties held
for sale and personal guarantee from a director), who is
also a major shareholder of the Company.

Other loan facilities amounted RMB410,800,000 (2021:
RMB700,000,000) were utilised as to RMB297,200,000
at the end of 2022 (2021: RMB285,500,000). They were
secured by completed properties held for sale, equity
interest of Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co.
Ltd., Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co. Ltd.
and Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties Development
Limited, personal guarantee by a director of the Company,
corporate and personal guarantee provided by parties
connected with the aforementioned director as at 31
December 2022 and 2021, whereas properties under
development and pledged deposit were also secured the
other loan as at 31 December 2021.

There are no loan facilities granted to subsidiaries which
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

37.

LT
R —FR-_FE-_—F+-_A=+—
H EXRECERTERREREREE

N
N

RERITZEFNFE ARKE141,256,000
T(ZEZ—F : AR®%277,232,0007T)
ERZEZFEBHHA - HUAREH
ZREME  BIELHEZERIMER—
FZEE(NMARRANEZERE) Z@AEL
R ZEBZ—F  UAKEZREME
BEREZERIMER—REZZAA
FERVEEIR)EEA -

HmEREE A AR 410,800,000
T(ZZFE=Z—4% : AR 700,000,000
L) RZZEZZFEEHHEFAR
¥ 297,200,000 (—Z T =-—F : AR
285,500,0007T) - RZZEZZF R =T
——F+ZA=+—8 EURHELEZ
ERTYWE SKMNUEBYRERERAD
A HNtEYRERBR AR REMNT
EHFEHEREERARZKRE - KAQF]
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to banks and financial institution in

38. EEHEA

R|EHRR - AEEK T EERMR TR
TheBEE  RAKEERERIER

order to secure the borrowings granted to the Group: #
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AEETFTT
Completed properties held for sale BIEHE2ZERIYE 428,574 359,166
Properties under development EEPME - 184,727
Investment properties WEME 506,000 551,960
Pledged deposits BERZES - 3,386
934,574 1,099,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

,%?\/\ ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁ%‘f

39. AREXRRELEZBRED

Amount
due to Amount
an executive due to an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities
Eff—-g47  Ef-EHE
EEA ESHE G| HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
At 1 January 2022 WZE--F—-f—-H 562,732 1,533 112,173 5,264
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEE4HEEH
Proceeds from other secured loans EBRRERMETE 133,800 - - -
Repayment of bank loans EBRTER (135,976) > = =
Repayment of other secured loans BEEMEERER (122,100) - - -
Net movement of amount due to an EN—FEEDaREFEEY
associate - - 249 -
Nt movement of amount due to an ER 281185508 3E
executive director - 3,143 - -
Repayment of principal of lease liabilites  EEHEEEAE - = = (1,511)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid BN EEENFISH2 - - = (430)
Interest paid on borrowings ERERZHE (34,196) = = -
Total changes from UTERREEE
Financing cash flows BERLTE (158,472) 3,143 249 (1,941)
Other changes: Higs
Dividend income from an associate RE-HH2LANREMA
(note a) (fiita) - - (72,000) -
Finance costs BENK 34,196 = = 430
Total other changes EtEFEn 34,196 - (72,000) 430
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZA=1-H 438,456 4,676 40,422 3,753
note: Bt -

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
agreed with an associate that the amount due to an
associate of RMB72,000,000 was settled by offsetting the
dividend receivable from an associate of the same amount.

HE-ZTZ-—_F+ZA=+—HILF
E - AKEEBA K ’“**’“Tuiﬂﬁ;
FCOBRN—HBEQRREARE
72,000, oooﬁ@z@%ﬁiﬂﬁﬂé%&i%%%
—HBE QRN SIREE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

MARBESBARD T 2022F F#H

39. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 39. AREXBELEZERER (&)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)
Amount
due to Amount
an executive duetoan Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities
EN—B8  EN-ARE
&% EES NEFE fEaRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ANRETFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2021 nZE-—F—-F—H 744,549 586 112,219 1,836
Changes from financing cash flows ~ REELHELE
Proceeds from other secured loans EtBEREFMERA 16,000 - - -
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (35,717) - - -
Repayment of other secured loans EREMEERER (162,100) - - -
Net movement of amount due to an Rl AN O N
associate - - (46) -
Net movement of amount due to an - AHTEZNRFEY
executive director - 947 - -
Repayment of principal of lease liabilitles  EEHE&ELE - - - (1,836)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid BN EEEAHFSHS - - - (109)
Interest paid on borrowings ERERZHE (42,167) - - -
Total changes from ITEE 2845
Financing cash flows BERERE (223,984) 947 (46) (1,941)
Other changes: At
Finance costs RENA 42,167 - - 105
New lease entered HIE ik - - - 5,264
Total other changes Rt 42,167 - - 5,369
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+-A=1—H 562,732 1,533 112,173 5,264




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. EBALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRZEHREVBEREREMBIBE 2R
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, 5 RN - RNEE G R A THET T
the Group had the following significant transactions with HERZS
related parties:
(@) Compensation of key management (a) TEEBAEWHE
personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key BEERB ARBIZHITRIENTT
management personnel were the executive and EERTEEERAE BEZEHMN
non-executive director of the Company, details of SFIEENMIEE12 0
whose emoluments are set out in Note 12.
(b) Balance with related party (b) EEEEEEALZEER
2022 2021
—E-C —E -4

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARFETT

Balances due to related parties:

Associate:
Guangzhou Xintian Properties
Development Limited (note (a))

Executive Director:
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (b))

Lease liabilities:
Related company:

Tianlun Holdings Limited Company
(note (e))

PN BARSE A £ 2 484

i3 — B/
BIMN#F R EHEERE
BRAR (M it(@) 40,422 112,173

BITES:
SR B LA (Mt (b)

HERE: 4,676 1,533
BB ATE -

RwiEIRBR AR (M itE)
3,753 5,264
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEBA LR F @)
(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party (c) EHBEBALzZRS

2022 2021
—TEC-CH %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AREFT
Realised deferred management fee RE @A Lz EERRE
income from a related party: EEBRA :
Associate: Bt NT)
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN RAEEERBR AT
Development Limited (note (c)) (Htit(c)) 6 310
Realised deferred interest income on MTHREATERZEER
loan to a related party: EEF BUA -
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BINFFREEZRRAR AR
Development Limited (note (d)) (Bi#t(d) 17 973
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEBA LIRS @)
(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party (continued) (c) EHEBALZXRSZ(E)
2022 2021

—EC-CH —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT

Repayment of principal and interest M—HEBATEEHESE
element of lease liabilities to a related ~ HIAS N FEE S :

party:
Related company: BEEsA T
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company K@t BR AR (M itle))
(note (e)) 1,941 1,941

Corporate/personal guarantee provided B A T AEEERGME
by related parties in respect of loans REZ Q8 EAER
facilities of the Group:

Parties related to a director of the EEXRAREEFBEBH AL :

Company:

Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KisERER AR (M D)

(note (1) 110,800 400,000
Mr. Zhang Guo Ming (note (1) SR BB 55 A (MY At () 110,800 400,000
Director: 2%

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (g)) SR B LA (i) 552,056 977,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Transaction with related party (continued)

notes:

(@)

Balances due to an associate are unsecured,
interest free and no fixed repayment terms in the
year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.

Balance due to an executive director is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Management fee income from an associate was
charged at a negotiated value, deferred and
recognised at applicable basis.

The deferred interest income on a previous loan to
an associate was realised during the year.

It represents the lease liabilities payable to a
related company for the right of use of a property
as back office for a term of 3 years. The balance
is repayable within 2 years (2021: 3 year). It was
charged at a negotiated value.

The underlying loan facilities to subsidiaries were
jointly guaranteed by the close family member
of a director of the Company and a company
controlled by that close family member Tianlun
Holding Limited Company which amounted to
RMB110,800,000 (2021: RMB400,000,000)
were utilized as to RMB110,800,000 (2021:
RMB119,500,000).

The underlying loan facilities to subsidiaries
guaranteed by the director of the Company
amounted to RMB552,056,000 (2021:
RMB977,232,000) were utilized as to
RMB438,456,000 at the end of 2021 (2021:
RMB562,732,000).
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110,800,0007C (=& = — 4 :
A R #400,000,0007T) @ H&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including
currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivative or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are discussed below.

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of pledged deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, trade payables, accruals, other payables and
borrowings.

41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BHKEREERAFRETE®)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a) Categories of financial assets and (a) SRMEERBEZER
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s KEEGEFBMRARKEN 2R
statements of consolidated financial position relate HERATEHEERCHEER
to the following categories of financial assets and RIBEHE

financial liabilities:

Financial assets THEE

2022 2021
—EgE-= —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Financial assets measured at amortised  IE#EKAAEZ S MEE

cost
— Trade receivables — FEUER K 2,609 4,681
— Deposits and other receivables — 12 & M E M EIER K 84,510 135,094
- Pledged deposits —B2ERES - 3,386
- Cash and cash equivalents —-ReEMRSEEY 76,860 222,250
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRES
TREE - 7,920
163,979 373,331
Financial liabilities THEE
2022 2021

—E-CHF —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKEFTT

Financial liabilities measured at amortised KR A EC SR EE

cost

- Trade payables — ERTARSR 518,579 456,049
— Other payables — H MR RIE 99,092 157,273
- Borrowings — &R 438,456 562,732

1,056,127 1,176,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. HEREERAFETE®E)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency.

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which most
of its transactions are denominated. Certain bank
balances of the Group are denominated in HK$ and
RMB respectively. As at the reporting date, foreign
currencies were translated into RMB at the closing
rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.

(b)

SMNE /L B

E¥EBRESRIAZ AFESK
KReRESHEERZEEHMKB 2
[Eg2

AR REBETZWNBRRHY
REBERET(AET]  KEBOX
SAEBTTEE - RPBELL0HE
REINYBEEBRARE - KEH
RGUMANREEE - AEBETIR
THEBDHIANBTTRAREEE -
REE B - SNE TR I EE X 45

EEERSAKREE g
BEOUAEEEERZTIEES
FHE - EEHNERBR T E K o

CHMEER
5

c

\

RER B B AT SN BN ERR o R
o EEEEEINERR - WR K
ERE RENERIMNE RS ©

AEEEBEHFUR—BEHE
BIMNERBR KR - TRBZFE
REBEM -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the ordinary course of its operations.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent included in the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of financial guarantees issued represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

The credit risks on pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent are limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are mainly
government authorities which are considered with
very low risk of default.

Deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalents are considered
to have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

The credit risks associated with financial guarantee
is considered as limited and mitigated because
they are secured over the properties sold to the
corresponding customers.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. HEREERAFETE®E)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the rents receivables from property investment,
the Group has policies in place to ensure that
leases are made to tenants with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payments and rental deposits. It also
has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade/rents
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counter parties and customers.

The credit policies to manage credit risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

(c)

5 £ B R R BB ()

YRR ERPEEMS - A&H
EERBRERAAS S EYBR
ARZEE B D EHFRIERE
EecHPETHE - AKETF
RB H A B A2 Fr A RE AR SRERBRAE
B ER o I - ANEH
TE A2 B 3% 18 51 e M AR AR e Mk AR
&2 AIE 5 - ARELR B AT UL
Bl & 88T IR R SURE R 1R - BT
AXRBRERERZTREFE
W MARBEYESAEPEER

B o
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BEERBRZEERE  XR/Z
ERREFBMHAEEZEER
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BBREBREERAFETEE)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
() Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) FEERBRKBETME)
(continued)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, ERASBEERBER 2 — 3
the Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the o REBUEBAZKKREED
impairment for its customers in relation to its XRELENHMATP ZRE - I
property investment operation because these THRZEEFPREREAEG LM
customers consist of a large number of small RRFHNERE - BUARRE
customers with common risk characteristics that FPIREE NGRS A SIERIE
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay Kge N o TRIBHAE BN KA TEH
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual EEEBERNEANERED B LIE
terms. The following table provides information WHE(R_EZZFRk_FT=—
about the exposure to credit risk for rents F+ A=+ HIREERET
receivables of the property investment segment mIEERBRZER -
which are assessed based on provision matrix as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 within lifetime ECL.
Gross carrying amount BREAAE
2022 2021
—ECCE “E--F
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying Average on trade carrying Average on trade
amount lossrate  receivables amount lossrate  receivables
el felk
FEAE THFEX ERRE BESE  T9EEE BiEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFLT  ARETL ANEEFT
Current (not past due) NE(rEad) 2,784 6.27% 175 4918 5.56% 274
1-180 days past due @H12180A - 6.44% - 39 5.76% 2
2,784 175 4,957 276

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#




41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

The following tables show the movement in lifetime

ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

under the simplified approach:

BREREERAFETFE®E)
(c) fEERMKEEETMGE)

HRE#E(E)

BETBREDNRBEELBREENE
mfbat - W BAMN B TS ERA
H B N A EG 2 ATIE EE BHE S

e

TRINRRIEMCTTED BB E
R ZKATEREREEE 2 &

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KARH KRS
EEFR -1
(FEEHE) (EERE) b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT AREFT ANRETFT
As at 1 January 2021 R-E--%-8-A 325 - 325
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected credit ~ CHRZBHEEHE(RE)/ B
loss recognized (49) 156 107
Uncollectible amounts written off Bz AR FE - (156) (156)
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZA=1-H 276 - 276
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected credit ~ ERZELEEHE(ED),/ BiE
loss recognized (101) 39 (62)
Uncollectible amounts written off Bz AR - (39) (39)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--E+-R=+-H 175 - 175
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from
interest bearing bank deposits and borrowings at
variable interest rate. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy and will consider enter into interest
rate hedging should the need arise. The Group
ensures that it borrows at competitive interest rates
under favourable terms and conditions.

Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate for bank deposits
should not be materially enough to cause adverse
financial effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

41.

,%?\/\ ﬁ%%&i’%ﬁﬁﬁi

MEEREERAFETE®E)

Interest rate risk (continued) (d) F=EREKE)
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through IR E B E B R 2 R E b &
the impact of the rate changes on interest-bearing SHRIRER - AEEFLEEZYF
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of R E /*Ki’-]EA—ITXW*UKﬁE/RJ
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing loans are Bl o AEE > S T A S
sholwn. as below interest rate profile ..The Group’s EEEF|E o
policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates
available for the borrowings.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFE LR
The following table details the interest rate TRFLRRERRE AR
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end fERZ MRS -
of the reporting period.
2022 2021
—BoCE I
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERA%E ik
% RMB’000 % RMB000
AREFR NEETE
Fixed rate borrowings EREF
Other borrowings from financial AbemiEE
institutions 10.5%-11.8% 297,200  10.5%-11.8% 285,500
Variable rate borrowings FRER
Bank borrowings BITER At the 141,256 At the 277,032
People’s People’s
Bank of Bank of
China 5 years China 5 years
loan base loan base
interest plus interest multiply
0.55% 110.60%
inflated rate or plus 0.55%
inflated rate
RREAREL BB ARRST
DEENEE REEREE
kS EE
10.55%2 110.60%3%
FBHE 10.55%
8%
Total borrowings el 438,456 562,732
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'L'
A

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2021:
with all other variables held constant, would

50 basis points) in interest rates,

increase/decrease the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated loss by approximately
RMB530,000 (2021:
the Group’s profit after tax and increase/

decrease/increase

decrease accumulated loss by approximately
RMB1,040,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
loss after tax (2021:
accumulated loss) and other components

profit after tax) (and

of equity that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s loss after tax (2021: profit after
tax) (and accumulated loss) and other
components of equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
as 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. HEREERAFETE®E)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Other price risk

The management consider that the effect
to the change in fair value of investment in
equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income on the change in fair value is
minimal.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
consider to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables, other payables, lease liabilities,
financial guarantee, borrowings and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week basis, as
well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day projection.
Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-
day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading property held
for sale and funds financing for property under
construction. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.

(e)

(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. MBEBREERAFETE®
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
()  Liquidity risk (continued)  RBESEMREE)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRFIAEBRARRETES
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and BAEERREBABZFEA N
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, R DEREGHOARMBERERE
which are based on contractual undiscounted KRG B R ARRQ R A g Bk A
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and REZEFHEmMEL - 6872
the Company can be required to pay. Specifically, HoORTERRRERRENR
bank loans are included in the earliest time band B M miRfT BB A AR
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing FMEHE - TRBENEERRAEIE
to exercise their rights. The table includes both BB
interest and principal cash flows:
As at 31 December 2022
R-B-ZE+ZA=1-8
Weighted Total Within Between Between
average contractual one year one year two years
interest Carrying undiscounted oron and two and five ~ More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years five years
il 2371 ARARR -FR -%% MEE
% BEE BEREAE HREX WER &M BRLE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARETL  AREFT  ARETT AREFT  ARETZ
Trade payables ERER - 518,579 518,579 (518,579) - - -
Other payables b ERTE - 99,092 99,092 (99,092) - - -
Lease liabiities (principal &R E (XL
amount plus interest) flg) 11% 3,753 4,179 (2,039) (2,140) - -
Borrowings (principal ~ EF (A2 EMAE) 5% toZ
amount plus interest) 11.8% 438,456 531,547 (127,210) (98,117) (253,649) (52,571)
Financial guarantees HBERIH49)
(Note 43) - 1,550 1,550 (1,550) - - -
1,061,430 1,154,947 (748,470) (100,257) (253,649) (52,571)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BHKEREERAFRETE®)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(f)

Liquidity risk (continued)

) RBELERE)

As at 31 December 2021
R_B--%+-A=1-H
Weighted Total Within Between Between
average contractual one year one year two years
interest Carrying  undiscounted oron and two and five More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years five years
T ANRER —ER —£2 Mz
R FEE HenssR FEEX AR ik BRLE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETT  ARETT  AREFT ARKFT  AE#TT ARETT
Trade payables EfERR - 456,049 456,049 (456,049) - - -
Other payables AR - 157,273 157,273 (157,273) - - -
Lease liabllties (principal ~ FE&[E (KL EM
amount plus interes) fE) 11% 5,264 6,121 (1942) 2,038) (2,141) -
Borrowings (principal ~ EH(AREMAE)  5.2%10ZF
amount plus interest) 11.8% 562,732 674,729 (305,754) (40,151) (247,038) (81,786)
Financial quarantees ~ BHER(#:243)
(Note 43) - 3,580 3,580 (3,580) - - -
1,184,898 1,297,752 (924,598) (42,189) (249,179 (81,786)
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(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of
these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The Group also has a number of financial
instruments which are not measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. For
the majority of these instruments, the fair value are
not materially different to their carrying amounts,
since the interest receivable and payable is either
close to current market rates or the instruments are
short-term in nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position as capital,
for capital management purpose. The amount of
capital, being share capital, share premium, currency
translation reserve, capital reserve, contribution surplus,
capital redemption reserve, fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve, statutory reserve and
accumulated losses, as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB1,669,936,000 (2021: approximately
RMB1,708,387,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

42,
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e MR

43. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 43. BIBER
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for ARNEBILHYWEEMER
certain purchasers of the Group’s property IR BB ER(AE)
units (note) 1,550 3,580

note:

The Group was in cooperation with certain financial
institutions and arranged mortgage loan facility for its
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB1,550,000 (2021: RMB3,580,000). Such
guarantees will be discharged upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within one year after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant property; and (i) the satisfaction
of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee starts from the
dates the mortgagees obtained the mortgage loans.

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantees measured at fair value are immaterial.

HMAMEEEERAT 2022F F3#
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUE T E U

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021 were as follows:

42 A
2 N =]

44. RMIB AT 2R

i

A= B —

=

Ft+ZA=+—HBRZFT=—
FH+-A=t—H BMBRRZFENT

Proportion of
ownership interest
REERLY
Held by a
subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the Company
registration registered capital interest Company KA Principal activities and
Name M/ BERARE/ ¥ 1] RAR HEAT  places of operations
£ s/ Bx gEfER BRER B8 BE TEXBREXRME
Canton Million Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited (note (ii)) ("BVI") Hong Kong
Canton Milion Investments EBRUEE 1% RERNSRARR
Limited (2 ii)) ([RERRES])
Chengmai Shiyou Logistics Co. Ltd.  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
(note (i), (i), (iv) & (v))
FEEBNRARAA el AR10,000,00070 LEEK
(B ~ (i)~ (v) ()
Grandwill International Investment  Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited
ERERRARRAT Bl 1T LEXH
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Zhi  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Pei Factory Company Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))
BNTH S ERRBERAT Gl AK%10,000,0007 RPERENERE
(W& )
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading Limited  The PRC RMB10,500,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(note (i), (i) & (iv)) inthe PRC
ENRRESERAT hE AR10,500,0007C RPEEERESR
(B2 ~ (i) & (iv))
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited the PRC
(note (i), (i) & (iv))
ENEREHEREERLR hE AR 10,000,000 RPERERERR

(B ~ (i) %)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. RHEB AR ZEZ= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

KRR A
Held by a
subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the Company

registration registered capital interest Company KAFZ  Principal activities and

Name AL/ BRARA/ 50 N WEBAR  places of operations

£ s/ ER gEfEx ERER KA KR IEEBREENE

Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (note (i) & (iv)) property investment in

the PRC

BNEBRERRAT el AK%20,000,0007 RPBIEENEERR
(R W) WERE

Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics The PRC RMB48,830,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (note (i), (iv) & (v)) inthe PRC

BHEBMRERAT hE AK%48,880,0007 RAERtENEER
(Bt ~ (v)R()

Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. property investment in
(note (i), (iii) & (iv)) the PRC

ENEREHELRERAR e AR 112,000,000 RPBIEENEERR
(W)~ (i &) NERE

Guangzhou Shihui Commercial The PRC RMB1,500,000 100% - 100%  Inactive

Clubhouse Management Limited
(note (i), (i) & (iv))

BN EEEEMERERAR HEl AR81,500,0007 LEEH
(B~ (i (i)

Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% - 90%  Property management in
Management Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))

BNAREZTZEEERARAR HE AR%2,000,0007 RPBRENEER
(Wit (iv)
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
,%?/\ ﬁ%i&%’%ﬁﬁﬁ

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

44, RHBLAT 2R (E)

Proportion of
ownership interest
RRERLA
Held by a
subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the Company
registration registered capital interest Company KARZ  Principal activities and
Name AL/ BRARE/ 50 ON] WEBAR  places of operations
£ iyl YA E BHEMER ERER KA BE IERBREEHY
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties  The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))
BNMEREHERZERAA el AK%33,000,0007 R ENEER
(W& iR )
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited the PRC
(note (i), (i) & (iv))
BNHMENEERERAA el AF%3,000,0007C RBEENEER
(B - (iR (v)
Guangzhou Yijie Cleaning Company ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited (note (i), (i & (iv)) PRC and provision of
cleaning services
EMERREZER AT el AK%1,000,0007C R EREERR
(W) ~ (i (i) REEZRE
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment  The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited (note (i) & (iv)) PRC
BMAEREBERDRMZ0E W) RE AR%11,000,0007 RS ERERR
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
(note (i, (i) & (iv)) PRC
BOHREFARAT hE AR%10,000,00070 RPERERERR
(B~ (i)
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
EEEXARAA Bl 17 KAt ERERR
Neo Bloom Limited (note ii)) BVI USS1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
HERERR (i) EBRRHS %7 REBRERERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. RHEB AR ZEZ= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
KRR A
Held by a
subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the Company
registration registered capital interest Company KAFZ  Principal activities and
Name AL/ BRARA/ 50 N WEBAR  places of operations
£ s/ ER gEfEx ERER KA KR IEEBREENE
Profit Venture Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
KERERRAT Bh 10,000% 7 RBRERERR
Smart Key Global Limited (note (i) ~ BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Smart Key Global Limited (#/(i) ~EBEZHE %7 REBRERERR
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
KREZARAA & 1007 R ERERR
Talent Central Limited (note (i) BVI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Talent Central Limited (4722 (i) EERAES 101%71 REBRERERR
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
(note (i), (i) & (/'v)) PRC
HAEEEERAT e AK%50,000,0007 RPERERERR
()~ (i & i ))
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
FRBERRAA 5 10,0007 LBk
Talent Prosper Corporation (note (i) BVI US$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
RRERERAR M i) ZERAHES T REBNERERR
Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC
(note (i), (v) & v)
Bt BYRERERAA hE AE%20,000,00070 RPERtENEER
(Bt~ (&)
Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC
(note (i), (iv) & (1)
AIEBYRERERAT hE A& #10,000,0007 RABIENEER

(W) &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  44. RHB AT 2R (@)
Proportion of
ownership interest
KRR
Held by a
subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the Company
registration registered capital interest Company KARZ  Principal activities and
Name HMRL/ BRAIRE/ 58 KA WEAF  places of operations
£ iyl YA E BHEMER ERER KA BE IERBREEHY
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
Development Limited
(note (i), (i) & (iv))
ERF A REERARAR e AR #50,000,00070 s 3
(B i~ (iR i)
Xuzhou Linan Business Management - The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
Co., Ltd. (note (i, (i), (iv) & (v)
BMRREXERERT hE AF%3,000,0007 s 3
(Wt ~ (i)~ ()& )
Guangzhou Yongaing Investment  The PRC RMB18,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Co., Ltd. (note (i), (i), & (iv)) PRC
BMKBRERAT e AK%18,000,0007 R ERERR

(B~ (i i)

notes:

(i)

(iv)

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign
owned enterprises under the PRC law.

The above companies are registered as limited companies
under the PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are
not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

The names of certain companies referred in these
consolidated financial statements represent management’s
best effort in translation of the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered or
available.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
acquired 49% equity interest in Guangzhou Guoyou
Logistics Co., Ltd. Details of acquisition is set out in the
Company’s announcements on 20 January 2021 and 27
January 2021.

Wizt -

(i

(ii)

LA RIRSE R BUA R LB RN B A
BRARREBEFBEEZEEIMAERA

% MY 2 R HE T B T $R R A 3F e B
WEMEBRAERABTEZ -

RS R SR T B 2 R - A
AHBREMRLE T AR ZEBAE
BEENYHERA 2P XABAIEL
HXHE -

BE_T_-—F+_A=+—HILHF
o AEEKREENEEYRER QT
HI149% MM - WIHHFFIBEN AR TR
—E - F—A-+HER-E-—F—
A-++tB2Z21H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

77 N =

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45. AATMB BRI REEEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =
COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment R Mt = -
Interests in subsidiaries RN - Ea 1,633,125 1,656,977
1,633,125 1,556,977
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUA « & M E b EU
AR 35 812
Tax recoverable AR O 718 12 12
Cash and cash equivalents RERBECEEY 202 1,294
249 2,118
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT B FA Ie B b JE < RRIB 1,946 978
Amount due to a director B —RESHA 32,297 26,971
Amounts due to subsidiaries DRI PNGIE S 92,945 85,638
127,188 113,587
Net current liabilities REEEFEE (126,939) (111,469)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 1,506,186 1,445,508
EQUITY =
Share capital &7 37,628 37,628
Reserves (note (a)) & (K77 (a) 1,468,558 1,407,880
Total equity R 1,506,186 1,445,508
Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE BET
Director Director
EE EE
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45.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

note:

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUE T E U

(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (BtZ —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

45. RRQTNYBUIRR R EE2E

4= A
2 N =]

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =)
COMPANY (continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (a) RARHER
Currency Capital
Share  translation Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
g% BEXER
R %E REARE HABH i 2itEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETRT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2022 N-Z-_—#—-F—H 2,982,905 (364,353) 393,107 82 (1,603,861) 1,407,880
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (64,388) (64,388)
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEMZEWA :
for the year:
Exchange gain on translation ~ #EALG 2
of the Company’s g v
financial statement I 5 e - 125,066 - - - 125,066
Total comprehensive income ~ FEZERALE
for the year - 125,066 - - (64,388) 60,678
As at 31 December 2022 R-EB--&#+-A
=+-8 2,982,905 (239,287) 393,107 82 (1,668,249) 1,468,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M
(For the year ended 31 December 2022) (B2 —F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45. ZARIHNEBR R R EEEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE xR
COMPANY (continued)
note: (continued) Htat - (&)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (continued) (a) NNl EES) (E)
Currency Capital
Share translation  Contributed redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
g% BAED
BB JAGERE N il 2HEE L

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTT  ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETE  ARETZL

At 1 January 2021 RZZ2=—F—-F—H 2,982,905 (320,136) 393,107 82 (1,582,816) 1,473,142
Loss for the year FEBA - - - - (21,045) (21,045)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FEEM2AEFIE :
the year:
Exchange loss on translation ~ #EALNEZ
of the Company’s g st
financial statement B 5 Yeza - (44,217) - - - (44,217)

Total comprehensive loss for ~ FE2HABELH

the year - (44,217 - - (21,045) (65,262)
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ--%+ZH8
=t+-A 2,982,905 (364,353) 393,107 82 (1,6083,861) 1,407,880
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had no R-_E-_—_Ek-_ET-_—%F+_H
balance of distribution reserves available for distribution to =+—H  ARRTEDIRFEEEHRAT

the owners. MR TFHEBA o
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TALENT ProPERTY

TALENT PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
MAMWEEBEBERAQ A

TALENT PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
MAHEKEESRAF

Add #ilE : Unit A704, 3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB H R BB AR E 5T
FCERLARESIE AT04E

Tel B3 26206028
Fax f8EH : 2620 6098
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